
 

Parkside  Station Approach  Burton Street  Melton Mowbray  Leicestershire  LE13 1GH 

01664 502502 * contactus@melton.gov.uk * www.melton.gov.uk * @MeltonBC 

 

 
 

Agenda 

 
 

 

 

Meeting name Meeting of the Scrutiny Committee 

Date Thursday, 23 November 2023 

Start time 6.30 pm 

Venue Parkside, Station Approach, Burton Street, 
Melton Mowbray, Leicestershire. LE13 1GH 

Other information This meeting is open to the public 
 

Members of the Scrutiny Committee are summoned to the above meeting to 
consider the following items of business. 
 
Edd de Coverly 
Chief Executive 
 
Membership 
 
Councillors M. Brown (Chair) A. Thwaites (Vice-Chair) 
 S. Atherton R. Child 
 H. Cliff C. Evans 
 M. Gordon S. Lumley 
 R. Sharp T. Webster 
 
 
Quorum:  5 Councillors 
 
 

Meeting enquiries Democratic Services 

Email democracy@melton.gov.uk 

Agenda despatched Wednesday, 15 November 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

Page 2 of 2 

No. Item 
 

Page No. 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

2.   MINUTES 
To approve the Minutes of the previous meeting held on 19 October 
2023. 
 

1 - 6 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
Members to declare any interest as appropriate in respect of items to 
be considered at this meeting. 
 

7 - 8 

4.   REVIEW OF THE FORWARD PLAN 
To consider the attached Forward Plan and identify any relevant 
items for inclusion in the Scrutiny Work Programme, or to request 
further information. 
 

9 - 26 

5.   MID-YEAR REVIEW OF THE SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 
The Scrutiny Committee is to undertake a mid-year review of the 
Scrutiny Work Programme. Members are invited to suggest 
additions for the Work Programme and to comment upon the 
existing Work Programme. 
 

27 - 32 

6.   CLIMATE CHANGE - DRAFT STRATEGY CONSULTATION 
The Scrutiny Committee will consider a report on the Draft Climate 
Change Strategy Consultation. 
 

33 - 76 

7.   URGENT BUSINESS 
To consider any other items that the Chair considers urgent. 
 

 

  
 
 
 
 



1 Scrutiny Committee : 191023 

 

 

 

 

Minutes 

 

 

 

 

 

Present: 

 

Chair Councillor M. Brown (Chair)  

 

Councillors A. Thwaites (Vice-Chair) H. Cliff 

 M. Gordon S. Lumley 

 R. Sharp  

 

In Attendance Inspector Darren Richardson, Leicestershire Police 

 

Officers Director for Housing and Communities (Deputy Chief Executive)  

Assistant Director Housing Management   

 Assistant Director for Customer and Communities   

 Safer Communities and Neighbourhoods Officer (AB) 

Safer Communities and Neighbourhoods Officer (JP) 

 Senior Democratic Services and Scrutiny Officer  

Democratic Services Officer (CB) 

 

  

Meeting name Scrutiny Committee 

Date Thursday, 19 October 2023 

Start time 6.30 pm 

Venue Parkside, Station Approach, Burton Street, 

Melton Mowbray, Leicestershire. LE13 1GH 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



2 Scrutiny Committee : 191023 

 

Minute 

No. 

 

Minute 

17 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors S Atherton, Child, Evans 

and Webster. 

 

18 MINUTES 

The Minutes of the meeting held on 21 September 2023 were approved, subject to 

an amendment which states that Councillor Gordon was advised that she was able 

to participate in items 14 and 15, as they did not relate to any items under 

consideration at the meeting. 

 

19 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were received. 

 

20 REVIEW OF THE FORWARD PLAN 

The Chairman introduced the Cabinet Forward Plan and invited Members to 

comment. 

 

21 REVIEW OF THE SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2023/24 

The Chairman introduced the Scrutiny Work Programme 2023/24 and invited 

Members to comment upon the document. 

 

22 CRIME AND DISORDER 

The Assistant Director for Customer and Communities, Aysha Rahman, introduced 

the report, and a presentation was given to Members. 

  

Members were advised that no cases could be discussed as this could compromise 

any ongoing investigations. 

 

Inspector Darren Richardson was introduced, he explained he had been at 

Leicestershire Police for 15 years and is a local resident. He gave an update on 

various areas they have been working on. 

 

• Drug and county lines – Inspector Richardson stated that since January this 

year, they have arrested 30 people for drug offences and have seized a 

significant amount of cash and drugs. They have given out section 8 

warnings and by being proactive he is confident that this area will see 

improvement. 

• Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) and environmental crime – Inspector 

Richardson recognised that this area has had a big impact. The 

constabulary have been looking at different approaches and have worked 

well with the partnership targeting hotspot areas. A section 35 dispersal 

order was raised 18 October due to ASB in the town centre with a group of 

young people, several people were arrested and 1 charged. 

• Rural Crime – This has previously been a weak point for Leicestershire 

Police. The Police and Crime Commissioner is now targeting this area, with 

Page 2



3 Scrutiny Committee : 191023 

 

a rural team of 2 officers and a vehicle fit for purpose. There have been 1100 

engagements in the last year, call handlers have been trained to deal with 

rural crime, there are now 6 rural WhatsApp groups and 20 volunteers on 

horseback. This has resulted in a 53% reduction in rural crime, £1M of stolen 

agricultural equipment has been recovered. 

• Hate Crime – This has been made a force priority, although it is not as 

prevalent in Melton. 

• Violent Crime – This has been a partnership priority, working with local 

secondary schools. 

• Nighttime Economy – There needs to be more focus, with more presence of 

local officers, the installation of CCTV has helped in this area. 

 

The Chair thanked Inspector Richardson for his report. A Member commented that 

they had witnessed how the police had dealt with drug dealers in their area, they 

thought they had handled it brilliantly and were very impressed. 

 

In response to a query on how long a caution stays on a young person’s record, 

Members were advised young people do have access to support and they are 

given every opportunity to reflect on their choices in order to make the correct 

decisions. However, if they are charged it does stay on their record, if it is a 

community notice then that is not disclosable. 

 

Following a query on the working hours of PCSO’s, the Committee was informed 

that PCSOs are civilians and are not contracted to work after midnight. Melton 

Police Station is open 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, resources can be stretched if 

there is a major incident however Officers will be brought in from surrounding areas 

if required. 

 

It was asked if there have been issues with young people using social media to 

arrange large scale gatherings (e.g., flash mobs), so far this hasn’t been an issue in 

Melton. 

 

In response to a query, Inspector Richardson stated that Leicestershire police have 

a public order unit with specially trained officers and that protesters such as Just 

Stop Oil can be dealt with accordingly.   

 

The comment was made that submitting reports online is a lengthy process and 

could be more user friendly. This was acknowledged however the contents are not 

managed by Leicestershire Police and they have to comply with national crime 

recording standards. 

 

It was asked that as the prison population is overcrowded are there plans for 

prisoners on remand. In response, Inspector Richardson stated that Operation 

Safeguard is in place so the Police can hold prisoners in the custody cells, space 

permitting. 

 

The comment was made that reporting via Crimestoppers by phone or internet is 

really good and effective. It was acknowledged that the Police do need to build 

Page 3



4 Scrutiny Committee : 191023 

 

trust, but the different ways of reporting to them does help improve this. Inspector 

Richardson stated that the Police do try to use every platform to communicate.  

 

It was noted that rural crime has decreased with the introduction of dedicated beat 

officers. A query was raised as to whether there are any patrols in the evenings. In 

response, Inspector Richardson stated that there are no patrols that are dedicated 

to rural areas, however officers that are on duty at night do cover rural areas. 

 

Members wanted to know if there was a measurable increase in retail crime in 

Melton. In response, Inspector Richardson stated that county lines and drugs do 

impact on retail crime and there are measures in place to deal with this, along with 

the radio communications that shops have with each other.  

 

Following a question on how much of stolen equipment is returned and how long it 

takes, Members were informed that this would depend on whether it is needed for 

forensic evidence. Inspector Richardson stated that there would be a good reason 

if equipment is not returned in a timely manner. 

 

The Officers from the Community Safety team spoke about the work they have 

been doing. Ms Bailey said the closure order had worked well in work they have 

been doing regarding ASB.   

 

Mr Poole talked about the stop and search operations they had recently undertaken 

with regard to fly tipping. He was asked if the mobile CCTV had managed to catch 

any, however to date, there have not been any prosecutions. It was noted that the 

mobile CCTV is deployed in the hotspot areas. The question was also asked that if 

a contractor is hired and they fly tip who would be liable, in response it was stated 

that both parties have a duty of care, so if anyone is hiring a contractor to dispose 

of waste, they should check that the contractor is registered. 

 

A Member commented that the public need to be made aware, members were 

advised that a fly tipping campaign was held earlier in the year.   

 

Suggestions were made to improve road safety, such as installing convex mirrors 

on Dalby Road and Hartopp Road and the use of Radar speed signs that show 

when someone is speeding. 

 

Details were asked regarding the E-Cins software, it was explained it stands for 

Empowering Communities and it is used in Case Management and the community 

support hub. The software links with other services and their systems. Outside of 

Leicestershire, neighbouring authorities also use it. 

 

Members raised whether Community Triggers can be more widely advised to the 

public. In response, the Committee was informed that they are on our website and 

their use has increased over the last couple of years. 

 

The Chair thanked the team for a comprehensive report and gave his thanks to 

Darren, Aysha, Amelia, and John for attending the meeting. 

Page 4



5 Scrutiny Committee : 191023 

 

 

23 URGENT BUSINESS 

Housing Ombudsman, Annual Report 2022/23 

The Director for Housing and Communities, Michelle Howard, introduced the report 

explaining they wanted to bring it to Members attention as soon as possible as 

Officers take complaints seriously and want to be open and transparent. The 

Director stated that very few do go to the ombudsman with 4 complaints being 

considered with 10 findings, with 5 of those being considered maladministration. 

However, it was also noted that there were some positive findings contained within 

the report.  

 

Officers advised that a query had been raised with the Ombudsman, as there were 

some queries regarding the data leading to some difficulty in reconciling the 

complaints. There was also a difference in the data between the Ombudsman 

report and the letter sent to the council.  

 

The query was raised as to whether complaints arise as a result of a tenant’s 

expectations. Officers confirmed there are a range of reasons for complaints. The 

Committee were informed that a review of the complaints policy had taken place in 

the last year, and the Council is committed to ensuring that complaints are properly 

followed up.  

 

In response to a question regarding how much compensation is given, Members 

were informed that the ombudsman assesses and decides how much is paid 

depending on the inconvenience and stress caused. In addition, it was noted that 

the ombudsman can request policy changes if they are required.  

 

The Assistant Director for Housing Management said that the culture of how the 

Council deals with complaints is taken very seriously. Officers now contact people 

either by phone or face to face to discuss stage 1 or 2 complaints to help resolve 

the issues and get a full understanding of tenant’s expectations. Complaints are 

analysed to understand any trends of changes required.  

 

Members queried how the public will be informed about the report and were 

informed that the report will be published with all the figures to provide context.   

 

Following a question on whether the ombudsman takes into consideration factors 

such as sickness or the behaviour of the contractors It was stated that as the 

Council are the landlord, it is the Councils responsibility to keep tenants informed 

and to effectively manage contractors.  

 

A member noted that a review of complaints more generally may be a topic of 

interest for the scrutiny committee in the future.  

 

 

The meeting closed at: 8.25 pm 

 

Chair 

Page 5



6 Scrutiny Committee : 191023 

 

 

Page 6



In each case above, you should make your declaration at the beginning of the meeting or 
as soon as you become aware.  In any other circumstances, where Members require further 
advice they should contact the Monitoring Officer or Deputy Monitoring Officer in advance 
of the meeting. 

 

MEMBER INTERESTS 
 

Do I have an interest? 

 
1 DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS (DPIs) 
 

A “Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” is any interest described as such in 

the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 

2012 and includes an interest of yourself, or of your Spouse/Partner (if 

you are aware of your Partner's interest) that falls within the following 

categories: Employment, Trade, Profession, Sponsorship, Contracts, 

Land/Property, Licences, Tenancies and Securities. 

 

A Disclosable Pecuniary Interest is a Registerable Interest.  Failure to 

register a DPI is a criminal offence so register entries should be kept up-

to-date. 

 
2 OTHER REGISTERABLE INTERESTS (ORIs) 
  

An “Other Registerable Interest” is a personal interest in any business of your 

authority which relates to or is likely to affect:  

a)  any body of which you are in general control or management and to 

which you are nominated or appointed by your authority; or  

b)  any body  

(i)  exercising functions of a public nature  

(ii)  any body directed to charitable purposes or  

(iii)  one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public 

opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union) 

 

3 NON-REGISTRABLE INTERESTS (NRIs) 
 

“Non-Registrable Interests” are those that you are not required to register but 
need to be disclosed when a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates 
to your financial interest or wellbeing or a financial interest or wellbeing of a 
relative or close associate that is not a DPI. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



In each case above, you should make your declaration at the beginning of the meeting or 
as soon as you become aware.  In any other circumstances, where Members require further 
advice they should contact the Monitoring Officer or Deputy Monitoring Officer in advance 
of the meeting. 

Declarations and Participation in Meetings 

 
1 DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS (DPIs) 
 

1.1 Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Disclosable 

Pecuniary Interests which include both the interests of yourself and your partner then: 

 

a) you must disclose the interest;  

b) not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter; and  

c) must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a 

 Dispensation. 

 
2 OTHER REGISTERABLE INTERESTS (ORIs) 
 

2.1 Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to the financial interest or 

wellbeing of one of your Other Registerable Interests i.e. relating to a body you may be 

involved in: 

 

a) you must disclose the interest 

b) may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak 

at the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the 

matter; and  

c) must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a Dispensation.  

 
3 NON-REGISTRABLE INTERESTS (NRIs) 
 
3.1 Where a matter arises at a meeting, which is not registrable but may become relevant 

when a particular item arises i.e. interests which relate to you and /or other people you are 
connected with (e.g. friends, relative or close associates) then: 

 
a) you must disclose the interest; 

b) may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak 

at the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the 

matter; and  

c) must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a Dispensation.  

    
4 BIAS  
 
4.1 Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, using 

the best evidence and without discrimination or bias.  If you have been involved in an issue 
in such a manner or to such an extent that the public are likely to perceive you to be biased 
in your judgement of the public interest (bias): 

 
a) you should not take part in the decision-making process 
b) you should state that your position in this matter prohibits you from taking part 
c) you should leave the room.  

Page 8



 

1 

MELTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
Forward Plan 

 
FOR THE PERIOD November 2023 - January 2024 

 
What is the Plan?  
It is a list of the Key Decisions to be taken by the Cabinet during the period referred to above. The Council has a statutory duty to prepare this document, in accordance 
with the Local Government Act 2000 (as amended). The Plan is published 28 clear days before a meeting of Cabinet is to be held. The Plan is available to view at the 
Council’s main offices in Melton, or on the Council’s website, http://www.melton.gov.uk. 
 
What is a Key Decision?  
Definition of a key decision as detailed in the Council’s Constitution is one which is  likely to result in the Council: 
 

• Incurring expenditure of £50,000 or more, or; 

• Making savings or generate income of £50,000 or more, and/or 

• Has a significant impact on two or more wards in the Borough and on communities living or working in those areas. 
 

Who makes Key Decisions?  
Under the Council’s Constitution, Key Decisions are made by:  
 

• Cabinet  

• The Leader and Portfolio Holders 

• Individual officers acting under delegated powers 
 
Are only Key Decisions published on the Plan?  
The Council has a statutory obligation to publish Key Decisions in the Plan. However, the Council has voluntarily decided to list non-key Cabinet decisions as well. To 
clarify matters, Key Decisions will be identified on the Plan with a Yes, non-key decisions with a No.  
 
What does the List tell me? 
The List gives information about:  

• Upcoming Key and Non-Key Decisions (identified by Yes or No next to them)  

• Whether the decision will be made in public or private.  

• When decisions are likely to be made.  

• Who will make these decisions.  

• Who you can contact for further information.  
 

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 4

http://www.melton.gov.uk/


2 

Who are the members of the Cabinet?  
The members of the Cabinet and their areas of responsibility are:  

• Leader of the Council, Housing and Landlord Services 

• Governance, Environment and Regulatory Services (and Deputy Leader)  

• Customers, Communities and Neighbourhoods 

• Town Centre, Growth and Prosperity 

• Corporate Finance, Property and Resources 
 
What is the role of Scrutiny?  
The Council’s Scrutiny Committee’s role is to contribute to the development of Council policies, scrutinise decisions of the Cabinet and hold them to account and to 
consider any matter affecting Melton Borough or its citizens. Dates of these meetings can be found on the Council’s website.  
 
Who do I contact, and how?  
Each entry on the Plan indicates the names of the people to contact about that item. They can be contacted via the switchboard on 01664 502502 
 
Request to view Background Papers  
Should you wish to request copies or extracts of any documents listed under the column entitled ‘Background Papers’, for items which are considered to be Key 
Decisions, please contact Democratic Services at, Melton Borough Council, democracy@melton.gov.uk  Please note that copies or extracts of documents which 
contain information of a confidential or exempt nature cannot be disclosed to the public.  
 
Submission of Additional Documents  
Additional documents which are deemed relevant to a particular Key Decision item may be submitted to the Cabinet for consideration. Copies of such documents may 
also be requested under the same process for requesting to view Background Papers.  
 
Confidential and Exempt Information  
This list may also include items to be considered which contain confidential or exempt information, but will not disclose any detail of a confidential or exempt nature. 
Such items will be identified with ‘(Exempt)’ in the report title.

P
age 10

mailto:democracy@melton.gov.uk


Report Title Background 
Papers 

Decision Maker Date of 
Decision 

Key 
Decision? 

Portfolio Holder/ 
Contact Officer 

 

Decision to 
be taken in 
public or 
private 

session? 

       

3 

Award of Contract – Lift Refurbishment at 
Granby House 
 
To award a contract for the passenger lift 
refurbishment at Granby House. 

 Portfolio Holder 
for Corporate 
Finance, 
Property & 
Resources 
 

Not before 
9th Nov 2023 

Yes Portfolio Holder for 
Corporate 
Finance, Property 
& Resources 
 
Michelle Howard, 
Director for 
Housing and 
Communities 
(Deputy Chief 
Executive) 
 

Open 
 

Sale of Cattle Market North 
 
The sale of Council land at the North End 
of the Cattle market, which comprises an 
approximate area of 1.69acres, allocated 
for housing. 

 Director for 
Growth and 
Regeneration 
 

Not before 
9th Nov 2023 

Yes Portfolio Holder for 
Town Centre, 
Growth & 
Prosperity 
 
Jiten Ravat, 
Corporate Property 
and Assets 
Manager 
 

Open 
 

P
age 11



Report Title 
and Expected Decision 

Background 
Papers 

Decision Maker Date of 
Decision 

Key 
Decision? 

Report Available/ 
Portfolio Holder/ 
Contact Officer 

 

Decision to 
be taken in 
public or 
private 

session? 

       

4 

Procurement of Evidence Base for the 
Local Plan Review 
 
The evidence that will be procured is as 
follows: 
- Retail Study 
- Employment Study  
- Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (Stages 
1 and 2)  
- Climate Change Study  
- Open Space Assessment Report  
- Local Housing, Economics and Affordable 
Housing Need Assessments (these could 
be 2 studies) 
- Gypsy and Traveller & Travelling 
Showpeople Assessment 
- Sustainability Assessment (and Habitats 
Regulations Assessment) 
- Green Infrastructure Strategy 
- Integrated Water Management Study  

 Director for 
Growth and 
Regeneration 
 

Not before 
9th Nov 2023 

Yes Portfolio Holder for 
Governance, 
Environment & 
Regulatory 
Services (& 
Deputy Leader) 
 
Sarah Legge, 
Assistant Director 
for Planning 
 

Open 
 

P
age 12



Report Title 
and Expected Decision 

Background 
Papers 

Decision Maker Date of 
Decision 

Key 
Decision? 

Report Available/ 
Portfolio Holder/ 
Contact Officer 

 

Decision to 
be taken in 
public or 
private 

session? 

       

5 

Lease Renewal at 66/68 Snow Hill, Melton 
Mowbray 
 
To arrange a lease renewal at 66/68 Snow 
Hill, Melton Mowbray 

 Director for 
Growth and 
Regeneration 
 

Not before 
9th Nov 2023 

Yes Portfolio Holder for 
Town Centre, 
Growth & 
Prosperity 
 
Jiten Ravat, 
Corporate Property 
and Assets 
Manager 
 

Fully 
exempt 
3 

Housing Management Policies 
 
To approve the following operational 
housing management policies: 
1. Garages Allocations & Arrears Policy 
2. Scooter Pod Allocations & Arrears Policy 
3. Recharge Policy 

 Leader of the 
Council & 
Portfolio Holder 
for Housing & 
Landlord 
Services 
 

Not before 
9th Nov 2023 

Yes Leader of the 
Council & Portfolio 
Holder for Housing 
& Landlord 
Services 
 
Doug Stother, 
Tenancy Services 
Manager 
 

Open 
 

P
age 13



Report Title 
and Expected Decision 

Background 
Papers 

Decision Maker Date of 
Decision 

Key 
Decision? 

Report Available/ 
Portfolio Holder/ 
Contact Officer 

 

Decision to 
be taken in 
public or 
private 

session? 

       

6 

Purchase of Wood Chipper and Two Vans 
 
Procurement process for a wood chipper 
and two vans 

 Director for 
Housing and 
Communities 
 

Not before 
9th Nov 2023 

Yes Portfolio Holder for 
Governance, 
Environment & 
Regulatory 
Services (& 
Deputy Leader) 
 
Paul Evans, 
Interim Head of 
Neighbourhoods 
 

Open 
 

Award of Contract - Domestic and 
Commercial Heating Servicing, 
Maintenance and Replacement 
 
To appoint a contractor to undertake gas 
safety checks, servicing and new 
installation of a range of heating types. 

 Leader of the 
Council & 
Portfolio Holder 
for Housing & 
Landlord 
Services 
 

Not before 
9th Nov 2023 

Yes Leader of the 
Council & Portfolio 
Holder for Housing 
& Landlord 
Services 
 
Christopher 
Flannery, Housing 
Asset Manager 
 

Open 
 

P
age 14



Report Title 
and Expected Decision 

Background 
Papers 

Decision Maker Date of 
Decision 

Key 
Decision? 

Report Available/ 
Portfolio Holder/ 
Contact Officer 

 

Decision to 
be taken in 
public or 
private 

session? 

       

7 

Award of Contract for the Stockyard 
Operation 
 
To appoint a contractor in relation to the 
Stockyard operation. 

 Director for 
Growth and 
Regeneration 
 

Not before 
9th Nov 2023 

Yes Portfolio Holder for 
Town Centre, 
Growth & 
Prosperity 
 
Lee Byrne, 
Assistant Director 
– Regeneration 
and UKSPF 
Delivery 
 

Open 
 

Award of Contract for the Construction of 
the Stockyard Development 
 
To appoint a contractor for the construction 
of the Stockyard development. 

 Director for 
Growth and 
Regeneration 
 

Not before 
9th Nov 2023 

Yes Portfolio Holder for 
Town Centre, 
Growth & 
Prosperity 
 
Lee Byrne, 
Assistant Director 
– Regeneration 
and UKSPF 
Delivery 
 

Open 
 

P
age 15



Report Title 
and Expected Decision 

Background 
Papers 

Decision Maker Date of 
Decision 

Key 
Decision? 

Report Available/ 
Portfolio Holder/ 
Contact Officer 

 

Decision to 
be taken in 
public or 
private 

session? 

       

8 

Approval of UKSPF Grants 
 
Approval of grants in line with grants 
guidance note and UKSPF guidelines and 
criteria for the financial year 2023/24. 

 Director for 
Growth and 
Regeneration 
 

Not before 
9th Nov 2023 

Yes Portfolio Holder for 
Town Centre, 
Growth & 
Prosperity 
 
Lee Byrne, 
Assistant Director 
– Regeneration 
and UKSPF 
Delivery 
 

Open 
 

Change of Establishment - Levelling Up 
Project Manager for 2 Year Fixed Term 
 
To recruit a fixed term position to support 
delivery of the Levelling Up Fund and other 
capital programmes on behalf of Melton 
Borough Council. 

 Director for 
Growth and 
Regeneration 
 

Not before 
9th Nov 2023 

Yes Portfolio Holder for 
Town Centre, 
Growth & 
Prosperity 
 
Lee Byrne, 
Assistant Director 
– Regeneration 
and UKSPF 
Delivery 
 

Open 
 

P
age 16



Report Title 
and Expected Decision 

Background 
Papers 

Decision Maker Date of 
Decision 

Key 
Decision? 

Report Available/ 
Portfolio Holder/ 
Contact Officer 

 

Decision to 
be taken in 
public or 
private 

session? 

       

9 

Service Level Agreement for Grant Funding 
to the Business Improvement District 
 
To award the Business Improvement 
District capital and revenue from the United 
Kingdom Shared Prosperity Fund over the 
period 2023/24 and 2024/25. 
 
To provide direct support to retail through a 
Business Improvement Grant scheme to 
enable pop-up shops and increase 
occupancy.  

 Director for 
Growth and 
Regeneration 
 

Not before 
9th Nov 2023 

Yes Portfolio Holder for 
Town Centre, 
Growth & 
Prosperity 
 
Gordon Watts, 
Senior Projects 
Delivery Officer 
 

Open 
 

Award of Contract - Aids and Adaptations 
Property Extensions 
 
To award a contract for Aids and 
Adaptations Property Extensions 

 Leader of the 
Council & 
Portfolio Holder 
for Housing & 
Landlord 
Services 
 

Not before 
9th Nov 2023 

Yes Leader of the 
Council & Portfolio 
Holder for Housing 
& Landlord 
Services 
 
Christopher 
Flannery, Housing 
Asset Manager 
 

Open 
 

P
age 17



Report Title 
and Expected Decision 

Background 
Papers 

Decision Maker Date of 
Decision 

Key 
Decision? 

Report Available/ 
Portfolio Holder/ 
Contact Officer 

 

Decision to 
be taken in 
public or 
private 

session? 

       

10 

Housing Consumer Regulation - 
Consultation Response 
 
The Regulator for Social Housing (RSH) 
has launched a 12 week consultation 
period regarding proposed new Housing 
Consumer Regulation Standards and an 
associated Code of Practice.  

 Leader of the 
Council & 
Portfolio Holder 
for Housing & 
Landlord 
Services 
 

Not before 
9th Nov 2023 

Yes Leader of the 
Council & Portfolio 
Holder for Housing 
& Landlord 
Services 
 
Alison Bennett, 
Assistant Director 
for Housing 
Management 
 

Open 
 

Refugee Resettlement Arrangements 
 

 Director for 
Housing and 
Communities 
 

Not before 
9th Nov 2023 

Yes Portfolio Holder for 
Customers, 
Communities & 
Neighbourhoods 
 
Rachel Chubb, 
Strategic Lead for 
Housing Options 
and Homelessness 
 

Open 
 

P
age 18



Report Title 
and Expected Decision 

Background 
Papers 

Decision Maker Date of 
Decision 

Key 
Decision? 

Report Available/ 
Portfolio Holder/ 
Contact Officer 

 

Decision to 
be taken in 
public or 
private 

session? 

       

11 

Arrears Recovery Capacity (Housing) 
 
To implement a rent arrears recovery plan 
to accelerate progress in collection of rent 
arrears owed to the council. 

 Director for 
Housing and 
Communities 
 

9 Nov 2023 Yes Leader of the 
Council & Portfolio 
Holder for Housing 
& Landlord 
Services 
 
Alison Bennett, 
Assistant Director 
for Housing 
Management 
 

Open 
 

Planning Enforcement Policies 
 
A policy how the Council deal with planning 
enforcement complaints. 

 Cabinet 
 

15 Nov 2023 No Portfolio Holder for 
Governance, 
Environment & 
Regulatory 
Services (& 
Deputy Leader) 
 
Sarah Legge, 
Assistant Director 
for Planning 
 

Open 
 

P
age 19



Report Title 
and Expected Decision 

Background 
Papers 

Decision Maker Date of 
Decision 

Key 
Decision? 

Report Available/ 
Portfolio Holder/ 
Contact Officer 

 

Decision to 
be taken in 
public or 
private 

session? 

       

12 

Quarter 2 Housing Revenue Account 
Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring 
Report 2023/24 
 
Information on actual expenditure and 
income incurred on the Housing Revenue 
Account, compared to the latest approved 
budget for the period. 

 Cabinet 
 

15 Nov 2023 No Portfolio Holder for 
Corporate 
Finance, Property 
& Resources 
 
Carol King, 
Accountant (CK) 
 

Open 
 

Quarter 2 General Fund Revenue and 
Capital Budget Monitoring Report 2023/24 
 
Information on the year end forecast and 
financial position for the General Fund and 
Special Expenses for both revenue and 
capital. 

 Cabinet 
 

15 Nov 2023 No Portfolio Holder for 
Corporate 
Finance, Property 
& Resources 
 
Natasha Allsopp, 
Senior Accountant 
(NA) 
 

Open 
 

Mid-Year Treasury Management Report 
2023/24 
 
Providing information on Treasury activity 
and Prudential Indicators for the period. 

 Cabinet 
 

15 Nov 2023 No Portfolio Holder for 
Corporate 
Finance, Property 
& Resources 
 
David Scott, 
Assistant Director 
for Resources 
(Deputy s151 
Officer) 
 

Open 
 

P
age 20



Report Title 
and Expected Decision 

Background 
Papers 

Decision Maker Date of 
Decision 

Key 
Decision? 

Report Available/ 
Portfolio Holder/ 
Contact Officer 

 

Decision to 
be taken in 
public or 
private 

session? 

       

13 

Acquisition of Affordable Homes to Spend 
Right to Buy Receipts 
 
It is proposed that Cabinet delegates 
authority to the Director of Housing and 
Communities, in consultation with the 
Portfolio Holder for Housing and Landlord 
Services, to purchase houses in 
accordance with the Right to Buy budget, 
to ensure that spend targets for the years 
2023/24 and 2024/25 are met on time. 

 Cabinet 
 

15 Nov 2023 Yes Leader of the 
Council & Portfolio 
Holder for Housing 
& Landlord 
Services 
 
Tahir Majid, 
Housing 
Development 
Manager 
 

Fully 
exempt 
3 

Leisure Contract Update 
 

 Cabinet 
 

29 Nov 2023 No Portfolio Holder for 
People and 
Communities 
(Deputy Leader) 
 
Aysha Rahman, 
Assistant Director, 
Customers and 
Communities 
 

Open 
 

P
age 21



Report Title 
and Expected Decision 

Background 
Papers 

Decision Maker Date of 
Decision 

Key 
Decision? 

Report Available/ 
Portfolio Holder/ 
Contact Officer 

 

Decision to 
be taken in 
public or 
private 

session? 

       

14 

Housing Revenue Account Asset 
Management Plan Review 
 
To provide a clear, updated delivery plan 
and to set a five-year capital programme 
for the Council’s housing stock. 

 Cabinet 
 

29 Nov 2023 Yes Leader of the 
Council & Portfolio 
Holder for Housing 
& Landlord 
Services 
 
Christopher 
Flannery, Housing 
Asset Manager 
 

Open 
 

Bradgate Flats - vary the utility supply 
contract 
 
To vary the current utility supply contract at 
Bradgate Flats 

 Leader of the 
Council & 
Portfolio Holder 
for Housing & 
Landlord 
Services 
 

5 Dec 2023 Yes Leader of the 
Council & Portfolio 
Holder for Housing 
& Landlord 
Services 
 
Christopher 
Flannery, Housing 
Asset Manager 
 

Open 
 

P
age 22



Report Title 
and Expected Decision 

Background 
Papers 

Decision Maker Date of 
Decision 

Key 
Decision? 

Report Available/ 
Portfolio Holder/ 
Contact Officer 

 

Decision to 
be taken in 
public or 
private 

session? 

       

15 

Update on the 2036 Vision and Framework 
for the Corporate Strategy 
 
An update on the progress of developing 
and then publishing the Council’s 2036 
Vision and Framework for the Corporate 
Strategy, to help the Council to deliver 
against these. 

 Cabinet 
 

13 Dec 2023 No Leader of the 
Council & Portfolio 
Holder for Housing 
& Landlord 
Services 
 
Martin Guest, 
Senior Corporate 
Policy Officer 
 

Open 
 

Licensing Enforcement Policy 
 
Approval of the Licensing Enforcement 
Policy. 

 Cabinet 
 

13 Dec 2023 No Portfolio Holder for 
Governance, 
Environment & 
Regulatory 
Services (& 
Deputy Leader) 
 
Joanne Belcher, 
Senior 
Environmental 
Health Officer 
 

Open 
 

P
age 23



Report Title 
and Expected Decision 

Background 
Papers 

Decision Maker Date of 
Decision 

Key 
Decision? 

Report Available/ 
Portfolio Holder/ 
Contact Officer 

 

Decision to 
be taken in 
public or 
private 

session? 

       

16 

Quarter 2 Corporate Performance and 
Progress Report 2023/24 
 
To report corporate performance data and 
the current position with regard to delivery 
against the Council’s priorities. 

 Cabinet 
 

13 Dec 2023 No Leader of the 
Council & Portfolio 
Holder for Housing 
& Landlord 
Services 
 
Martin Guest, 
Senior Corporate 
Policy Officer 
 

Open 
 

Complaints - Self Assessment 
 
The Council's self assessment, in response 
to the Local Government and Social Care 
Ombudsman and the Housing Ombudsman 
will contain the volume of complaints and 
how the Council comply with the 
Complaints Handling Code.  The self 
assessment needs to be considered by 
Cabinet and then published annually prior 
to the 31 December each year. 

 Cabinet 
 

13 Dec 2023 No Portfolio Holder for 
Customers, 
Communities & 
Neighbourhoods, 
Portfolio Holder for 
Governance, 
Environment & 
Regulatory 
Services (& 
Deputy Leader) 
 
Martin Guest, 
Senior Corporate 
Policy Officer 
 

Open 
 

P
age 24



Report Title 
and Expected Decision 

Background 
Papers 

Decision Maker Date of 
Decision 

Key 
Decision? 

Report Available/ 
Portfolio Holder/ 
Contact Officer 

 

Decision to 
be taken in 
public or 
private 

session? 

       

17 

Feasibility Study into the Melton Mowbray 
Cemetery 
 
To consider the report from the CDS Group 
on the feasibility study into a proposed new 
cemetery for Melton Mowbray. 

 Cabinet 
 

13 Dec 2023 Yes Portfolio Holder for 
Governance, 
Environment & 
Regulatory 
Services (& 
Deputy Leader) 
 
Paul Evans, 
Interim Head of 
Neighbourhoods 
 

Part exempt 
3, 4 

Intensive Housing Management Service 
Review Part 2 
 
Further to the decision by Cabinet in 
October, the second stage of consultation 
with tenants has commenced, offering 
choices for the service in the future.  
 
A further round of open meetings has been 
scheduled for tenants and the process has 
been agreed for the removal of the charge 
in November for those tenants who wish to 
leave the service. 

 Cabinet 
 

17 Jan 2024 No Leader of the 
Council & Portfolio 
Holder for Housing 
& Landlord 
Services 
 
Alison Bennett, 
Assistant Director 
for Housing 
Management 
 

Open 
 

P
age 25



Report Title 
and Expected Decision 

Background 
Papers 

Decision Maker Date of 
Decision 

Key 
Decision? 

Report Available/ 
Portfolio Holder/ 
Contact Officer 

 

Decision to 
be taken in 
public or 
private 

session? 

       

18 

UK Shared Prosperity Fund Update 
 

 Cabinet 
 

17 Jan 2024 No Portfolio Holder for 
Town Centre, 
Growth & 
Prosperity 
 
Lee Byrne, 
Assistant Director 
– Regeneration 
and UKSPF 
Delivery 
 

Open 
 

 

P
age 26



MELTON BOROUGH COUNCIL SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2023/24 
 

15 November 2023 

 

 

  

 
SCRUTINY REVIEWS  
These are dealt with through a combination of specific evidence gathering meetings that will be arranged as and when required and other activities, such as visits. There should only be a maximum of 
three reviews considered annually and review topics may be changed throughout the year as topical issues arise.  Once considered, these issues will be subject to further development and scoping. 
 
Should there not be sufficient capacity to cover items which are brought to the attention of Scrutiny they could instead be addressed through a “one-off” item at a scheduled meeting of the Committee.  

 
Topics 
 

 
Officer and Member 
Lead 

 
Date 

 
Notes 

Requested by (Member)/ 
Date agreed for addition by 
Scrutiny Chairman 

Portfolio Holder/Chief 
Officer consulted on date 
of report 

Budget Scrutiny Director for Corporate 
Services 
 
Assistant Director for 
Resources 
 
Scrutiny Lead: TBC 
 

12 December 
2023 

A Budget Scrutiny Workshop is proposed to give Members 
an opportunity to view key changes to the budget prior to 
the publication of the budget papers at January’s formal 
Budget Scrutiny Committee meeting. The Workshop gives 
Members an opportunity to raise concerns with any 
proposals before they are finalised. 

Requested by the Director for 
Corporate Services and Assistant 
Director for Resources.  
 
Agreed by Chairman on 22 August 
2023. 

N/A – There will be no final 
report but comments will be 
fed into budget papers. 

Future Leisure 
Provision 

Director for Growth and 
Regeneration 
 
Scrutiny Lead: TBC 
 

TBC Workshop session proposed. SLT suggested this should be a 
workshop instead of a Policy 
Development Group. 

N/A – There will be no final 
report but comments will be 
fed into existing plans and 
work streams. P

age 27

A
genda Item

 5



15 November 2023 2 

 

 
ONE OFF ITEMS/FORWARD PLAN(PRE-DECISION)/ANNUAL ITEM  
These are dealt with at scheduled meetings of the Committee. The following are suggestions for when particular items may be scheduled. 
 

 
Suggested Topics 
 

 
FORMAT 

 
Portfolio Holder/Officer 

 
Meeting Date 

 
Notes 

Requested by 
(Member)/ 
Date agreed for 
addition by Scrutiny 
Chairman 

Portfolio Holder/Chief 
Officer consulted on date 
of report 
 

(1) Climate Change Strategy One-off Portfolio Holder for 
Governance, Environment 
and Regulatory Services 
 
Director for Growth and 
Regeneration 
 

23 November 
2023 

A Scrutiny Committee workshop was held 
in March 2023 to review the Council’s work 
and the progress on the climate change 
strategy. Following the comments received, 
the draft strategy is being prepared. 
 
It is proposed for the Committee to review 
the draft Climate Change Strategy as part 
of the consultation process. The feedback 
and comments from the committee will 
inform the final strategy for consideration 
by the Cabinet and approval by the Council 
later this year. 
 

Scrutiny Workshop, 15 
June 2023 

Yes 

(2) Budget Annual Portfolio Holder for 
Corporate Finance, Property 
and Resources 
 
Director for Corporate 
Services 
 

25 January 
2024 

One item only agenda 
 
Scrutiny of the Budget.  
 
All Members are invited to participate. 
 

N/A Yes 

(3) Lightbulb – 5 Year Plan One-off Portfolio Holder for 
Customers, Communities 
and Neighbourhoods 
 
Director for Housing and 
Communities 

21 March 2024 
 
 

Scrutiny committee involvement in the 
development of the five-year business plan 
will be advantageous for the whole 
partnership. It will also enable the 
committee to provide feedback to cabinet 
on the opportunities and constraints for 
Lightbulb as a service (eg: eligible spend 
guided by legislative framework and 
ringfence, leading to underspend). 
 
This is a partnership piece of work. 
 

Scrutiny Workshop, 15 
June 2023 

Yes 

(4) Homelessness Strategy One-off Portfolio Holder for 
Customers, Communities 
and Neighbourhoods 
 
Director for Housing and 
Committees 

21 March 2024 Scrutiny Committee review of the draft 
homelessness strategy will add value and 
will enable feedback and / or 
recommendations to cabinet for 
consideration. In this context, the 
Committee would be well placed to fulfil a 
consultative function. 
 

Scrutiny Workshop, 15 
June 2023 

Yes 

P
age 28



15 November 2023 3 

  

 
Suggested Topics 
 

 
FORMAT 

 
Portfolio Holder/Officer 

 
Meeting Date 

 
Notes 

Requested by 
(Member)/ 
Date agreed for 
addition by Scrutiny 
Chairman 

Portfolio Holder/Chief 
Officer consulted on date 
of report 
 

(5) Regulatory change in 
housing review 

One-off Leader and Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and Landlord 
Services 
 
Director for Housing and 
Communities 
 

25 April 2024 This slot is on hold for a potential review on 
the effects of the regulatory change in 
housing upon Melton. 

Scrutiny Workshop, 15 
June 2023 

Yes 

(6) Annual Scrutiny Report Annual Item Scrutiny Officer 
 
Chairman of Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

25 April 2024 Report detailing the work of the Scrutiny 
Committee over the previous 12 months. 

N/A Yes 

P
age 29



15 November 2023 4 

 

 

 
PENDING ITEMS These items are awaiting further discussion or additional research before being added to the work programme 
 

 

 
Topics 
(One-off or Review Item?) 
 

 
Officer and Member Lead 

 
Date 

 
Notes 

Requested by (Member)/ 
Date agreed for addition by 
Scrutiny Chairman 

(1) Leader’s Annual 
Presentation 

Chief Executive 
 
Leader 

21 March 
2024 
(TBC) 

- Scrutiny Work Programme 
Workshop, 15 June 2023 

(2) Portfolio Holder for 
Governance, 
Environment and 
Regulatory Services 
Annual Presentation 

Monitoring Officer 
 
Portfolio Holder for 
Governance, Environment 
and Regulatory Services 

TBC - Scrutiny Work Programme 
Workshop, 15 June 2023 

(3) Portfolio Holder for 
Customers, 
Communities and 
Neighbourhoods Annual 
Presentation 

Director for Housing and 
Communities 
 
Portfolio Holder for 
Customers, Communities 
and Neighbourhoods 

TBC - Scrutiny Work Programme 
Workshop, 15 June 2023 

(4) Portfolio Holder for 
Town Centre, Growth 
and Prosperity Annual 
Presentation 

Director for Growth and 
Regeneration 
 
Portfolio Holder for Town 
Centre, Growth and 
Prosperity 

TBC - Scrutiny Work Programme 
Workshop, 15 June 2023 

(5) Portfolio Holder for 
Corporate Finance, 
Property and Resources 
Annual Presentation 

Director for Corporate 
Services 
 
Portfolio Holder for 
Corporate Finance, Property 
and Resources 
 
 

TBC - Scrutiny Work Programme 
Workshop, 15 June 2023 

(6) Connected with our 
Rural Communities 

Director for Housing and 
Communities 
 
Director for Growth and 
Regeneration 
 
Scrutiny Lead: TBC 
 

TBC Workshop session proposed. 
 
It is recommended that the Leicestershire and Rutland Association of Local Councils is invited. 

Scrutiny Work Programme 
Workshop, 15 June 2023 

(7) Offer to Young People Director for Housing and 
Communities 
 
Director for Growth and 
Regeneration 
 
Scrutiny Lead: TBC 
 

TBC Workshop session proposed. 
 
Workshop could be a prelude to a Youth Strategy. 

Scrutiny Work Programme 
Workshop, 15 June 2023 

P
age 30



15 November 2023 5 

(8) Supporting an aging 
population  

Director for Housing and 
Communities 
 
Scrutiny Lead: TBC 
 

TBC Workshop session proposed. Scrutiny Work Programme 
Workshop, 15 June 2023 

  

P
age 31



 

15 November 2023 

ADVICE ON WORK PROGRAMME 

What is a Work Programme? 

The Scrutiny Work Programme outlines the areas of work which are expected to be scrutinised over the coming months/year by or on behalf of 

the Council’s Scrutiny Committee and any Working Groups convened for review work. Topics added to the work programme should have 

expected outcomes to add value to the services delivered by the Council and its partners and/or improve the quality of lives of Melton’s residents. 

It is recognised that there is a need for flexibility in the work programme so as to allow relevant issues to be dealt with as and when they arise.  

Sources of Work Programme Ideas  

Numerous sources of information can help to inform topic selection, including:  

• Concerns that have been raised by the public relating to Council delivered services  

• Issues of community concern – not necessarily services delivered by the Council  

• Issues that have been flagged up by reviews, audits or inspections (past and present).  

• Issues relating to Councils outcomes, objectives and priorities  

• Consultations and interviews  

• Underperformance  

• “Stakeholders” concerns – raised by the Council’s partners or the users of services  

• Partnership objectives  

• Cabinet Members, Chief Executive or Directors presentations about the pertinent issues that are emerging and any opportunities or 

threats on the horizon  

• Central government priority changes  

• Improvement Plans  

• Forward Plan  

• Budgetary analysis.  

Scrutiny is also encouraged to think about external Scrutiny and the monitoring of other public bodies, and how its activities will engage partner 

organisations, the media and the public.  

Selecting a Work Programme Topic  

The Scrutiny Committee should use effective processes to select topics that will contribute towards the best possible work programme for 

Scrutiny. This means looking at the sources of information that may help and using them to choose the right topics.  

This involves:  

• Drawing out and discussing what matters most to Councillors and to the community at large  

• Finding out about any research that has been completed or that is planned  

• Prioritising topics  

• Considering what added value is expected as a result of Scrutiny involvement 

• Considering whether the topic is already being reviewed elsewhere  

It is also important to note that Scrutiny has limited time and resources and therefore workplans need to be manageable. It is not possible to 

include every topic suggested by Members, Directors or the Public in the work programme. In addition, Officer capacity may be diverted from 

projects if a review is added to the workplan without considering the impact on Officer resource and this should be a consideration in adding to 

work programme. Successful Scrutiny is about looking at the right topic in the right way and Members will need to be selective whilst also being 

able to demonstrate clear arguments in favour of including or excluding topics.  

Risks  

A common pitfall for Scrutiny can be the inclusion of topics on the work programme that are unmanageable, of limited interest to the community, 

purely for informational purposes, have few outcomes and fail to ‘add value’ to the work of the Council or the wellbeing of the community. As 

such the selection and prioritisation of topics is critical to the effectiveness of Scrutiny as such processes can ensure clearer focus, particularly in 

poor or weak areas of performance or major issues of concern to the wider community. 

Page 32



 

 

Scrutiny Report 

Climate Change: Draft Strategy Consultation 

1 

 

 

Scrutiny 
23 November 2023 

 

Climate Change: Draft Strategy Consultation 

Report Author: 

 
Nicola Butcher, Planning Officer 

01664 502322 

NButcher@melton.gov.uk 

Chief Officer Responsible: 

 
Pranali Parikh, Director for Growth and 
Regeneration 

01664 504321 

PParikh@melton.gov.uk 

Lead Member/Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Margaret Glancy - Portfolio Holder for 
Governance, Environment and Regulatory Services 
(Deputy Leader)  

 

Corporate Priority: - Protect our climate and enhance our natural 
environment  

- Delivering sustainable and inclusive growth in 
Melton 

- Connected and led by our community 

Relevant Ward Member(s): All 

Date of consultation with Ward 
Member(s): 

All member briefing on climate change 19.07.21 

Exempt Information: No 

1 Summary 

1.1 This report presents a draft Climate Change Strategy for Melton borough. It is a high level 

strategic and evidence led document, a community focused strategy which considers and 

reflects the views of the local community and wider partners, collected through community 

consultation in 2022.  

1.2 The Strategy seeks to provide a framework for the whole community and Melton as a 

place, to reduce local greenhouse gas emissions and adapt to our changing climate. It 

seeks to bring together the local community to tackle the causes and impacts of climate 

and it is  expected to be delivered in many different ways and by many different people. 

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



Scrutiny Report 

Climate Change: Draft Strategy Consultation 

2 

 

The Council plan to use the strategy to inform its policies and decision making and also 

encourage others to do the same.  

1.3 The Draft Strategy was released for public consultation on the 22nd November 2023. 

Scrutiny Committee members are now asked to consider the draft Climate Change 

Strategy. Comments and feedback provided by the Committee will be used to shape the 

final document, ahead of its consideration for approval by the Council.  

1.4 The strategy will be supported by the Council through the development of two action 

plans. An internal action plan will focus on how the Council as an organisation will become 

more sustainable, including how it will move towards net zero emissions. A second 

boroughwide action plan will support actions to help the wider borough to do the same. 

These plans will be subject to scrutiny and consideration by members in 2024, after the 

strategy has been finalised. Progress on the action plans and tackling climate change will 

be reported to members at least annually thereafter.  

2 Recommendations 

That Committee: 

2.1 Consider the draft Climate Change Strategy for Melton borough and provide feedback to 
support the further development and finalisation of the document. 

3 Reason for Recommendations 

3.1 A Climate Change Strategy is not a statutory document and the Council could choose to 

not develop one. However, the Council made a commitment when it declared a climate 

emergency in 2019 to promote the cutting of emissions across the wider Borough 

alongside reducing its own organisational emissions.  The Council more recently 

strengthened its commitment when it became a signatory to the Leicestershire Climate 

and Nature Pact in March 2023, where it re-committed to tackle climate change alongside 

ecological decline throughout Leicestershire. Protecting our climate and enhance our rural, 

natural environment is a key priority in the Council’s corporate strategy 2020-2024. 

3.2 The Climate Change Act (2008, as amended) sets out a legal commitment for the UK to 

reach net zero emissions by 2050. The Government have been introducing a variety of 

regulations and requirements for local authorities to plan and prepare for climate change, 

reduce emissions and support nature recovery. These will have to be implemented at a 

local level and the development of a strategic boroughwide climate change strategy 

provide a consistent framework for the Council and others to consider in developing plans, 

policies and making decisions that impact Melton borough. It also provides a means to 

focus attention on the actions needed at a local level and foster community engagement 

and participation.  

3.3 The draft Climate Change Strategy can be found at Appendix A. It is recommended 

because it has been developed based on local evidence on both the likely impacts of 

climate change within the Melton Borough and what we need to do to adapt to our 

changing climate. It also sets out the key local challenges and actions required to reduce 

local area greenhouse gas emissions, which are the key driver of climate change, in line 

with the governments net zero targets. It has been developed to take into account local 

community views about climate change. It reflects the feedback from a comprehensive  

Council led community consultation on climate change held between February and April 

2022. 

Page 34

https://democracy.melton.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=3567
https://democracy.melton.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=3567
https://www.melton.gov.uk/environmental-issues/climate-change/our-pledge/
https://www.melton.gov.uk/environmental-issues/climate-change/our-pledge/
https://www.melton.gov.uk/contact-us/consultations-public-notices-and-surveys/consultation-results/climate-change-consultation-results/


Scrutiny Report 

Climate Change: Draft Strategy Consultation 

3 

 

3.4 The Draft Climate Change Strategy has been developed with support of the Council’s 

Climate Emergency Working Group as well as taking into consideration feedback from a 

Scrutiny Committee climate change workshop held on the 8th March 2023.  

 

 

4 Background 

4.1 In 2019, against a backdrop of increasing concern over climate change, Melton Borough 

Council acknowledged the climate emergency and declared a Climate Emergency, and 

committed to reduce its own greenhouse gas emissions and work towards making Melton 

borough a more sustainable place.  In March 2023 the Council became a signatory to the 

Leicestershire Climate and Nature Pact, which reaffirmed its commitment to tackling 

climate change alongside working to help restore nature locally.  

4.2 Scientific evidence, built up over many years, shows that the planet’s climate is changing 

as a direct result of human activity which has increased greenhouses gases in the 

atmosphere by around 45% since the industrial revolution. The main causes of this are the 

burning of fossil fuels for energy, agriculture and deforestation, and the manufacture of 

cement, chemicals, and metals.  

4.3 The UK government has set out legally binding targets to reach net zero emissions by 

2050 and to reduce emissions by 68% by 2030 and by 78% by 2035 (from 1990 levels; to 

date national greenhouse gas emissions have fallen by around 50%).  This strategy 

proposes Melton’s approach to support its communities and businesses in achieving these 

ambitious targets. 

5 Main Considerations 

5.1 The Council has developed the Climate Change strategy, set out in Appendix A, to set out 

how it and others can work together to tackle climate change across Melton borough. It 

sets a framework for reducing greenhouse gas emissions and strengthening the resilience 

of the borough to climate change.  

5.2 A community focused high level and strategic document 

5.3 The strategy is high level and simple to encourage a wide readership. The Council’s 

climate change webpages complement the strategy, they include a fuller discussion of the 

local issues, challenges and evidence about climate change alongside to links to further 

information. 

5.4 Many local people, businesses and other organisations in Melton borough have told us 

that they are or want to take action individually to tackle climate change. But no single 

person or organisation can tackle it alone and many of the action needed are not all within 

the control or influence of the Council. It requires a whole community response. Also whilst 

climate change is a global problem, it is in our local communities‚ workplaces, schools and 

families, where both the impacts will be felt and where many solutions lie. 

5.5 The strategy is intended as a foundation for considering how the local community can 

come together to tackle climate change across the Melton borough as effectively as 

possible. It is very much a community rather than Council focused strategy and it seeks 

support from everyone to work together to deliver the actions and changes needed locally. 

The strategy is also considered a starting point, in that it recognises that it will need to be 

Page 35

https://www.melton.gov.uk/environmental-issues/climate-change
https://www.melton.gov.uk/environmental-issues/climate-change


Scrutiny Report 

Climate Change: Draft Strategy Consultation 

4 

 

delivered in many different ways and by many different people, and that we expect it will 

evolve as we learn.  

5.6 The strategy’s focus on local actions and achievements, that can help us all feel like we 

can make a difference, also recognises that the power of local action is how it can make 

climate change relatable and the solutions tangible. Its central theme is that we need to 

listen to local people and then collaborate and work together to tackle climate change, to 

do things ‘with’ local communities rather than individual organisations working separately 

and doing things in isolation. It is set out as a framework for the whole community 

including external organisations to work towards.  

Evidence led and based on community feedback 

5.7 The strategy has been developed based on a wide variety of local evidence and data. It 

takes into consideration the individual characteristics of Melton borough, and its 

resources, to set out local opportunities to tackle climate change that align with local 

peoples aspirations. It highlights areas where we can best influence change at a local 

level, to both reduce local area greenhouse gas emissions and adapt to climate change.  

5.8 This strategy has also been developed to reflect local people’s views, expressed in a 

widescale public consultation on climate change undertaken in 2022. Local people have 

told us that they are really concerned about climate change and overwhelmingly support 

local action to tackle it. They expressed a strong desire for local council’s and other local 

organisations to show local leadership and do more and faster. Local people also felt 

strongly about wider sustainability ambitions, including the need to reduce waste, litter and 

plastic pollution and to protect and enhance nature and the local natural environment, so 

these issues are also considered within the strategy.  

5.9 This background work identified the following key local challenges to tackling climate 

change;  

a) The rural sparse nature of the borough means travel and transport will be harder to 

decarbonise, with more limited options in rural areas to enable people to choose to 

walk, cycle or use public transport to meet their everyday needs. We are also starting 

from a point of higher car ownership, use and dependency than many other areas.  

b) Our houses and buildings are overall older, more diverse and less energy efficient than 

average. They are overall expected to require more works and cost more to retrofit, 

particularly if we are to preserve our many valued characterful and historic buildings. 

c) Future electric grid capacity is uncertain in many places and it may cause additional 

challenges, both to connect new renewable energy to the grid and meet increased 

future demand for electricity to increasingly power transport and buildings. 

d) The Melton borough is already considered a water stressed area, and unless action is 

taken water supplies are predicted to fall below what is needed to meet local needs 

before 2050. 

e) Our large agricultural sector has high emissions that are regarded as hard to reduce. It 

is hard to influence these emission at a local level because the sector is highly 

dependent on global economic pressures, national regulations and wider consumer 

demand. 

f) Our growing and aging population is expected to increase energy and water demand, 

produce more waste and need housing as well as travel and use of local infrastructure 

and services, all of which can increase local emissions. Our aging population is 

Page 36



Scrutiny Report 

Climate Change: Draft Strategy Consultation 

5 

 

expected to increases the number of people who are most vulnerable to impacts of 

climate change, particularly from overheating.  

5.10 The strategy also identifies some local strengths and opportunities in relation to tackling 

climate change; 

a) Parish councils, local residents, community groups, businesses, farmers and other 

organisations that are enthusiastic in supporting climate action. Many are already 

taking action locally. Strong local partnerships also already exist, with organisations 

working together at all levels across the borough and wider area. 

b) Local people highly value our natural environment and rural landscape and there is 

potential for nature based actions to help tackle climate change, both to reduce 

emissions and to become more resilient to overheating and flooding. 

c) Local businesses, business networks and local leadership that wants to move towards 

a greener, less wasteful and more circular economy and new local economic 

opportunities could deliver over 400 new local green jobs, particularly in the retrofitting 

sectors.  

5.11 Council led actions and update on the work done so far: 

5.12 Alongside the Borough-wide Strategy we have also undertaken a review of the carbon 

emissions through council’s operations. This provides a good comparison with the data 

collected in the baseline study in 2019 and demonstrates reduction of emissions through 

Council’s actions over the last three-year period. Key messages include a reduction in 

overall emissions, a reduction in energy consumption within council own assets, other 

findings will be given as a verbal update. Using this data as a basis we are also preparing 

an Internal Climate Change Action Plan to reduce our own emissions, we have consulted 

with all departments within the Council to understand what they are already doing, what 

they can do and what they will be required to do. As the Council have the greatest 

influence over Scope 1 and Scope 2 (emissions through council’s direct influence and 

actions) emissions the action plan places greater emphasis on reducing scope 1 and 2 

emissions over scope 3. In addition, to the action plan the Climate Change Working Group 

has provided steer that the Council should align our target with the national agenda, the 

Local Plan timescales and the emerging Corporate Strategy. The proposed target is as 

follows “The Council will become net zero in scope 1 and 2 emission for council operations 

by 2036”. Any actions arising from the climate change strategy and corporate strategy 

priorities will be considered as part of the budget process for resource allocation. 

6 Options Considered 

6.1 A local area Climate Change Strategy is not a statutory requirement. The option to not 

develop one however is not considered appropriate because;  

a) The development of a strategic boroughwide Climate Change Strategy provides a 

framework to help ensure joined up action to tackle climate change across Council 

services and decision making. It also seeks to help join up action with wider partners 

and the local community, which is expected to help to deliver efficiencies and increase 

impacts. 

b) The Council has a variety of regulatory requirements that require it to have regard to 

climate change in its decision making, including in its Local Plan, and a strategic 

climate change strategy can help to ensure these are considered appropriately and 

coherently across the organisation.  

Page 37



Scrutiny Report 

Climate Change: Draft Strategy Consultation 

6 

 

c) Local People have told us that they are concerned about climate change and want to 

see the Council do more to tackle it locally. The adoption of a strategic Climate Change 

Strategy demonstrates to the local community a commitment to tackling climate 

change in line with its climate emergency declaration and its signing of the 

Leicestershire Climate and Nature Pact.  

d) The Council has a trusted local leadership role. Local government play an essential 

role in meeting national net zero ambitions because it is best placed to integrate 

activity on the ground and to inspire action by, local businesses, communities, and civil 

society. No other layer of government is closer to people or better able to tailor climate 

action to meet the needs of local communities.  

e) Many of the funds allocated to climate action are delivered through local authorities. A 

strategic document helps to ensure that the Council prioritises the most appropriate 

actions and measures to use such funding effectively.  

7 Consultation 

7.1 The draft strategy has been informed by the following consultations; 

  Community consultation February - April 2022 

The draft strategy has been informed by an extensive community consultation the council 

undertook between February and April 2022. The council engaged with a variety of 

people, including young people, through holding six in-person consultation events and 

running a three month online survey which over 200 people responded to.  

Key takeaways from the community consultation  

7.2 It was clear that respondents were on the whole fairly or extremely concerned about 

climate change. Four out of five people felt that climate change was both important to 

them and that they will have to change the way they live their lives to tackle it. The top 

concerns included; 

a) The scale of the potential impacts of climate change, particularly on the natural 

environment.  

b) That there is no time to wait to take action. 

c) The impacts on future generations and their way of life, including the respondents own 

children and grandchildren. 

7.3 Even the very small percentage of respondents who were not concerned about climate 

change tended to express strong concerns regarding our care for the natural environment 

and around waste, including through overconsumption. 

7.4 Many of the main takeaways in terms of what people want the Council to do were around 

how it operates as an organisation and its local leadership role. They wanted to see 

climate change embed within the Council and the decisions it makes, they want to see the 

Council lead by example, and they want it to help provide them with honest and impartial 

information. 

7.5 Measures to reduce waste and increase recycling and enhance and protect the natural 

environment received the strongest level of support overall. However there was a good 

level of support for a wide range of actions. The five key actions and issues that people 

wanted to see addressed locally have been summarised into the categories shown below; 

Page 38

https://democracy.melton.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=3567
https://www.melton.gov.uk/environmental-issues/climate-change/our-pledge/


Scrutiny Report 

Climate Change: Draft Strategy Consultation 

7 

 

a) Get planning right – put the environment first in all planning decisions; solar panels 

on roofs, no more fossil fuel heating systems, make space for nature, build for people 

not cars. 

b) Support for householders – provide householders with support and information, on 

schemes and funding for insulation, EV cars and chargepoints, solar panels and heat 

pumps, and better guidance for listed building retrofitting. 

c) Cut the rubbish – ditch plastic, explain what can be recycled, recycle more types of 

things, including food waste, and make getting rid of waste easier. 

d) Make choosing how you move a reality – reduce car dependency, better public 

transport options, safe cycleways and footpaths and more EV chargepoints, realise 

opportunities of MMDR 

e) Enhance and protect the natural environment – environmentally friendly 

management of green and open spaces, create more and better places for nature, 

improve the waterways, no solar farms on agricultural land. 

7.6 The climate change consultation feedback report has been published and is available to 

view on the Council’s website. 

  Wider consultation feedback 

7.7 The Strategy has also taken into consideration feedback received from wider Council 

consultations; including those on the draft Housing Strategy (where climate change is one 

of four key themes) and the Council’s Design of Development Supplementary Planning 

Document (that aims secure more sustainably designed new development).  

  Internal Consultation  

7.8 The draft strategy has also been informed by ongoing feedback from officers and elected 

members, including; 

a) Ongoing feedback from the Council’s Climate Change Emergency working group, who 

have reviewed and shaped the draft strategy presented in this report.  

b) All members climate change briefing session held on the 19th July 2021. 

c) Scrutiny Committee workshop on climate change held on the 8th March 2023.  

Public consultation on the draft Strategy   

7.9 The draft strategy presented in this report is subject to public consultation from the 22nd 

November until the 31st January 2024. This will provide an opportunity for the local 

community and wider partners to help shape and finalise the strategy.  

8 Next Steps – Implementation and Communication 

8.1 The consultation on the draft strategy will end on Wednesday 31st January 2024.  

8.2 Feedback from the Committee will directly inform the final stages of development of a 

strategy alongside feedback from received as part of the consultation process.  

8.3 The responses to the public consultation alongside a finalised strategy will then be 

presented to the Climate Emergency Working Group in late February 2024. Subject to 

their consideration, a finalised strategy will then be presented to Cabinet in April 2024.  

Page 39

https://www.melton.gov.uk/contact-us/consultations-public-notices-and-surveys/consultation-results/climate-change-consultation-results/


Scrutiny Report 

Climate Change: Draft Strategy Consultation 

8 

 

9 Financial Implications 

9.1 There are no direct financial implications of the draft strategy however once the action 

plans are developed the actions contained within are almost certain to have financial 

implications. These will need to be prioritised against other Council priorities in order to 

ensure they can be funded.   

Financial Implications reviewed by: Director for Corporate services 

10 Legal and Governance Implications 

10.1 Adopting a Climate Change Strategy is not a statutory requirement.  

10.2 This report sets out the intended approach to establishing policies, procedures and 

programmes that confirms with the objectives set out in the Council’s Climate Emergency 

resolution and Leicestershire Climate and Nature Pact to which it is a signatory.  

10.3 The draft strategy itself does not have any direct legal implications. It is a high level and 

strategic document that is proposed to be used in part to help shape Council services and 

decision making alongside increasing engagement and action across the wider 

community. Therefore many of the actions will not be delivered directly by the Council.  

10.4 The legal and governance implications of any individual actions, including any set out in 

the supporting action plans that will help to deliver the Climate Change Strategy, will be 

reported upon when brought forward in due course. Any significant Council led projects 

will also be subject to their own business case, performance monitoring and evaluation 

processes that will consider any legal and governance implications.  

10.5 Modifications to any policies, procedures and programmes that arise from the strategy will 

be made pursuant to the General Power of Competence contained in sections 1-6 of the 

Localism Act 2011 and where relevant additional statutory powers including, the Climate 

Change Act and indirect local powers such as the Minimum Energy Efficiency Standards 

Regulations. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Interim Assistant Director for Governance & 

Democracy (Monitoring Officer) 

11 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 

11.1 Achieving the strategic aims of this strategy will impact upon everyone who lives, works 

and travels in the borough, including residents and communities, staff and public and 

private sector organisations.  

11.2 An Equalities Impact Assessment will be undertaken as part of the consultation process 

prior to finalising the strategy. 

12 Data Protection Implications (Mandatory) 

12.1 A Data Protection Impact Assessments (DPIA) has not been completed for the following 

reasons; because there are no risks/issues to the rights and freedoms of natural persons. 

13 Community Safety Implications 

13.1 The draft strategy does not have any direct community safety implications.  

14 Environmental and Climate Change Implications 

Page 40



Scrutiny Report 

Climate Change: Draft Strategy Consultation 

9 

 

14.1 The proposed climate change strategy is expected to lead wide ranging positive outcome 

environmental and climate change implications as set out in the strategy document. The 

strategy promotes actions that conserve our use of energy and natural resources, 

including water and those that will reduce waste and pollution. It also promotes climate 

actions that respect, protect and enhance nature and improve biodiversity. The Climate 

Change Strategy has been developed to deliberately have a positive impact on the natural 

environment alongside tackling climate change. It rightly recognises what the local 

community have told us, that tackling climate change and protecting and enhancing nature 

and the natural environment are co-dependent, that one cannot be achieved without 

achieving the other.  

15 Other Implications (where significant) 

15.1 The adoption of the strategy by the Council could have an influence over actions of all 

council service delivery and major projects including the review of Local Plan policies, 

energy efficiency measures for council’s property and assets, communication with council 

tenants, approaches to digitalisation etc. 

16 Risk & Mitigation 

Risk 
No 

Risk Description Likelihood Impact Risk 

1 The Strategy is not evidence led leading to limited 
ability to demonstrate impact and outcomes 

Low Critical Medium 

2 Lack of partnership approach to delivery and/or 
lack of wider community buy in.  

Low Critical Medium  

3 Lack of money and resources to undertake 
actions identified as required to tackle climate 
change. 

High Critical High 

 

  Impact / Consequences 

  Negligible Marginal Critical Catastrophic 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

Score/ definition 1 2 3 4 

6 Very High     

5 High   3  

4 Significant     

3 Low   1, 2  

2 Very Low     

1 Almost 
impossible 

    

Page 41



Scrutiny Report 

Climate Change: Draft Strategy Consultation 

10 

 

 

 

 

Risk No Mitigation 

1 
The Strategy has been developed based on extensive data analysis, insights 
and consultation feedback. 

2 

The strategy has been developed based on feedback from extensive 
community engagement, which has shown interest from a wide variety of 
stakeholders to work collectively to address climate change locally. The action 
plan will consider the need for engagement and actions to foster community 
and partner buy in.  

3 

The strategy has identified the need to work together to lobby Government for 
the funding, policies and powers required to tackle climate change locally and 
more quickly. It has also recognised the need to work together across sectors 
and partners, both public and private sector, to help address wide ranging 
funding and resource gaps; a key reason why it is set out as a community and 
not organisational strategy.  

17 Background Papers 

17.1 None.  

18 Appendices 

18.1 Appendix A: Draft Climate Change Strategy 

Page 42



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

DRAFT  

Climate Change Strategy 

A Community Plan for Climate Action 

2024-2036 Page 43

Appendix A



 
1 

Introduction 

Scientific evidence, built up over many years, shows that the planet’s climate is 

changing as a direct result of human activity which has increased greenhouses gases in 

the atmosphere by around 45% since the industrial revolution. The main causes of this 

are the burning of fossil fuels for energy, agriculture and deforestation, and the 

manufacture of cement, chemicals, and metals. How we and the natural ecosystems 

around us, that support us, cope with the changing climate is the biggest single 

challenge that we face.  

In 2019, against a backdrop of increasing concern over climate change, Melton Borough 

Council acknowledged the climate emergency and committed to reduce its own 

emissions and become a net zero and more sustainable organisation. It also made a 

commitment to work towards making Melton borough a more sustainable place.  

The Council has now developed this strategy document to set out how it and others can 

work together to tackle climate change across Melton borough. It sets a framework for 

reducing greenhouse gas emissions and for making the borough more resilient to the 

impacts of climate change.  

This strategy reflects local people’s views, as expressed in a widescale public 

consultation on climate change undertaken in 2022. Most local people told us that they 

are really concerned about climate change. They gave their overwhelming support for 

tackling climate change locally, with a strong desire for local council’s and others to 

show local leadership and do more, faster. Local people also felt strongly about wider 

sustainability ambitions, including the need to reduce waste, litter and plastic pollution 

and to protect and enhance nature and the local natural environment. These are also 

considered in this strategy.  

A report from the community consultation alongside further local information 

about the climate change is available to view on the Council’s climate change 

webpages. 

 

  

Page 44

https://www.melton.gov.uk/environmental-issues/climate-change/our-pledge/
https://www.melton.gov.uk/environmental-issues/climate-change/our-pledge/


 
2 

About this Strategy 

This strategy document has deliberately been kept strategic, high level and simple to 

encourage a wide readership. The Council’s climate change webpages complement 

this strategy, they include a fuller discussion of the local issues, challenges and 

evidence about climate change alongside to links to further information.  

This strategy takes into consideration the individual characteristics of Melton borough, 

and its resources, to set out local opportunities to tackle climate change that align with 

local peoples aspirations. It highlights areas where we can best influence change at a 

local level, to both reduce local area greenhouse gas emissions and prepare and adapt 

to climate change.  

Although this strategy is not a statutory document, Melton Borough Council will use it to 

influence its work, services and plans and will encourage others in Melton borough to do 

the same. It is not just a ‘council’ strategy, rather we are asking everyone to support it 

and work together to deliver the actions and changes needed locally to tackle climate 

change. 

This Strategy is intended as a foundation for considering how we can come together to 

tackle climate change across Melton borough as effectively as possible. It is considered 

a starting point for action, that will be delivered in many different ways and by many 

different people, and we expect it will evolve as we learn.   

This is a community plan for local climate action  

The local community have told us that they are concerned about climate change and a 

growing number of local people, businesses and other organisations in Melton borough 

are already taking action individually to tackle it. But no single person or organisation 

can tackle it alone. It requires a whole community response. And whilst climate change 

is a global problem, it is in our local communities‚ workplaces, schools and families, 

where both the impacts are felt and where many solutions lie. 

People can feel overwhelmed when we focus on the enormity of the global challenge, it 

can make people feel helpless and reduce our motivation to act. This strategy 

recognises the power of local action, powerful because it can make climate change 

relatable and the solutions tangible. This strategy promotes a focus on local actions and 

achievements that can help us all feel like we can make a difference.  

The central theme of this strategy is that we need to collectively work together to 

respond to the climate challenge across Melton borough. We need to listen to local 

people and collaborate to tackle climate change together, to engage and encourage 

participation, so we do things ‘with’ rather than ‘to’ others. This is why this document 

seeks to provide a framework for the whole community, not just the Council to reduce 

local greenhouse gas emissions and adapt to our changing climate.  

Page 45

https://www.melton.gov.uk/environmental-issues/climate-change


 
3 

 Plan vision 

“To create a resilient, biodiverse, fair 

and more sustainable future for 

everyone in Melton borough ” 

This vision can only be achieved if we adopt the key principles set out 

below, which have influenced the development of this strategy;  

• Work together and collaborate and develop partnerships at all scales, with local 

people, businesses, organisations and wider partners. 

• Empower the local community to make sustainable choices. Communication, 

education and behavioural changes will be fundamental in nurturing this.  

• Be fair for everyone and recognise that we do not all have the same ability to take 

action and that the impacts of climate change will not affect us all in the same ways. 

No one should be unfairly burdened and we need to provide support to those who 

need it most. 

• Recognise and secure the wider benefits that can come from climate action, to 

improve our health and wellbeing, reduce our energy costs, provide new green job 

opportunities and help to protect and restore nature. We need to recognised that 

these benefits, particularly cost savings, may be the main reason that many people 

are willing to make changes to how they currently do things. 

• Accelerate where possible. We want to achieve net zero as soon as possible, but 

to do this we need to secure significant levels of additional funding and see a much 

stronger approach and policies from the Government, backed with real support to 

tackle our most challenging issues. We also need a local workforce with the right 

skills, alongside increased supply chain and manufacturing capacities, to be able to 

practically achieve our vision faster. 

• Adopt a focus on avoiding and reducing. We should focus our actions on what 

we can do to avoid and reduce emissions, waste and our use of resources before 

we consider actions such as carbon offsetting or recycling. We should also not 

promote actions that only move emissions from the borough to other places. 

These key principles are discussed further in the delivery section of the strategy.   

Page 46



 
4 

Strategy Overview 

Local Context 

In Melton borough, climate change is expected to bring hotter, drier 

summers and warmer, wetter winters. Extreme weather events such as 

heatwaves and heavy downpours are expected to become more 

frequent and more intense, with an increased risk of both flooding and 

periods of drought. Climate Change will impact us all differently, 

depending on our circumstances, but overall the key local challenges 

are likely to be; 

• A lack of water supply to meet local demand. 

• Impacts on people, from increased ill health due to overheating to 

an increased risk of flood damage to local infrastructure, homes 

and businesses. 

• Increased stress on the natural environment and local food 

production.  

Around two thirds of local area greenhouse gas emissions, that are 

driving climate change, come from the energy used to power transport 

and power and heat local homes, businesses and other buildings. 

These are the emission over which we have the greatest level of 

influence at a local level to change. The remaining emission largely 

come from agriculture, reflecting the rural character of the borough. 

However, local agricultural emissions are much harder to influence at a 

local level, as they are influenced by global and national economic 

factors, national regulations and wider consumer demand.  

Local people have told us that they want to see urgent action to tackle 

climate change, by reducing local greenhouse gas emissions, adapting 

to our changing climate and through supporting nature recovery.  

Many of the solutions we need are already understood and available. 

They include solar and wind power, energy efficiency buildings, electric 

cars and more walking, cycling and public transport. So this initial 

strategy focuses on the things that we can do now and on where we 

have the greatest influence at a local level; where we can most quickly 

make a positive change to local people’s lives, these have been set out  

across following five key delivery themes;   

• Transport and travel 

• Homes, buildings and the built environment 

• Natural environment and farming 

• Local economy 

• Waste and the use of resources  

4 
Page 47



 
5 

 

Transport and Travel  

Transport produces around a quarter of emissions in Melton borough. 

Achieving zero emissions from transport is a tough challenge because 

we are a sparsely populated and large rural area. To tackle transport 

emissions, we need to look at how we can reduce the need to travel 

and make alternative ways to get around including public transport, 

walking and cycling a realistic and attractive alternative. But we also 

need to be realistic and acknowledge that for a rural area like Melton 

zero emissions vehicles will be a significant part of the solution, 

including chargepoint infrastructure to meet everyone’s needs.  

Homes, Buildings and the Built Environment  

The local population is growing and there is a need to build more 

homes. New homes and buildings need to use much less energy and 

run on low carbon energy sources if they are to align with net zero 

targets. Our biggest challenge however is our existing homes and 

buildings, which need to be retrofitted along the same principles. 

Existing local homes and buildings are overall older, more diverse and 

less energy efficient than average. Only a third of local homes are 

reasonably energy efficient and few have low carbon heating systems. 

It is a huge financial and practical challenge. It is not just buildings but 

also the places where we live, they also need to adapt to be able to 

cope with the impacts of climate change. 

Natural Environment and Farming  

A healthy natural environment is crucial to achieving net zero, and 

providing ways for people and wildlife to adapt to the stresses of 

climate change. Protecting and enhancing our natural environment is 

something that local people feel strongly about and a key part of this 

strategy.  

Agriculture is both the single largest source of local greenhouse 

emissions in Melton borough and also the sector most likely to be 

impacted by climate change. Central to our challenge as a rural area is 

the efficient and sensitive use of land for all our needs, maintaining 

local food production, preserving and enhancing nature and wildlife 

habitats, generating energy and storing carbon. 

  

5 
Page 48



 
6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A Greener Low Carbon Economy  

Many of our needs are satisfied through the local economy, so the 

climate impacts and wider sustainability of local businesses and 

their products and services is important. Many local businesses 

want to become greener, less wasteful and more sustainable, and 

many have already taken steps to do so. 

We have a global economy and becoming more sustainable will 

likely be different for every business. There is however a role for 

local action, which will include ensuring local strategic plans support 

us to move towards a greener and lower carbon economy.  

There is expected to be opportunities for hundreds of new jobs in 

green sectors, in particular retrofitting local buildings, that we want 

local people to be in a good position to take advantage of, not only 

for their economic success, but so we be in a position to retrofit local 

buildings faster too. Training will be a key part of ensuring this.     

Resources and Waste  

We need to stop sending waste to landfill and change how we use 

things, to move from a ‘create, use, dispose’ mindset to one that 

promotes us to all ‘reduce, reuse, recycle and recover’, in line with 

the waste hierarchy and ideas for a more circular economy. This will 

help us reduce emissions from waste as well as reduce the energy 

and emissions associated with extracting materials, manufacturing, 

transporting and storing all the things we buy. 

The most pressing local resource issue is water. Melton borough is 

already considered a water stressed area, and unless action is 

taken public water supplies are predicted to fall below what is 

needed to meet local needs before 2050. So we all need to take 

steps to use water more efficiently.  

Delivering the strategy  

This strategy sets out an approach for action to be done with the 

support of the community. It is a positive framework to help the 

community to share knowledge, take action together and support 

and learn from one another.  

Melton Borough Council is committed to doing its own part and will 

take the strategy into account when developing policies and making 

decisions. It will develop two action plans, one to reduce its own 

emissions and become a more sustainable organisation and a 

second that sets out how it will work with the wider community to 

achieve the objectives of the strategy across the Melton borough. 

6 
Page 49



 
7 

Local Context 

How climate change will likely impact Melton borough 

Predictions for Melton borough indicate hotter, drier summers and warmer, wetter 

winters, with extreme weather events such as heatwaves and heavy downpours 

expected to become more frequent and more intense.  

In Summer we should expect  

More hot summer days with increased risks from overheating and less 

overall rainfall, which will mean periods of drought conditions are more likely.  

An increased risk of summer storms bringing heavier summer rainfall when it 

does rain, which increases the risk of flash flooding, due to heavy rainfall 

running off hard dry ground. 

In Winter we should expect 

Broadly the same number of rainy days, but total winter rainfall is expected to 

increase and with it the risk of fluvial flooding, due to more rain falling on 

already saturated wet ground.  

Warmer winter temperatures, which will also mean that cold spells and snow 

are likely to become much less frequent, which can throw our natural systems 

out of balance. 

Not every winter will necessarily be rainier than the one before, and not every summer 

will be hotter, but these predicted trends could have big impacts locally. The key 

impacts in Melton borough are likely to be increased damage and disruption from 

flooding and other extreme weather events, ill-health from overheating in heatwaves, a 

lack of water to meet local needs and increased stresses on nature, farming and food 

production.  

Reducing greenhouse gas emissions to limit the impacts of climate change 

The overall impacts of climate change will depend on how much more global warming 

there is. The more global temperatures continue to rise the more severe the impacts are 

likely to be. By reducing greenhouse gas emissions now we can limit further global 

warming and avoid the worst potential impacts of climate change. Unless we reduce 

emissions rapidly, the world is likely to exceed 2°C of warming by the end of this 

century, but warming could potentially reach 4°C, possibly more, if we take no further 

action. The local impacts of higher levels of global warming are predicted to be much 

more significant, as the table below sets out.   

Page 50



 
8 

Climate impacts in Melton borough under different levels of global warming 

 Low emission scenario   

+ 2°C warming                          

High emissions scenario  

+ 4°C warming                            

Hottest summer day +3°C warmer +5°C warmer 

Wettest summer day 3% more rainfall 17% more rainfall 

Hottest winter day 0.4°C warmer 2.1°C warmer 

Wettest winter day 18% more rainfall 45% more rainfall 

Source: 12Km MET Office climate data projections; compared to 2009-2019 weather 

Adapting to climate change 

Due to the long life of gases such as carbon dioxide in the atmosphere, it is predicted 

that even if emissions were brought to zero tomorrow, the earth will still increase in 

temperature for decades to come. So we need to prepare for future climate change. 

How can we prepare and adapt to climate change? 

It is essential that we develop and promote a focus on adapting and becoming more 

resilient to climate change across local organisations and the local community. We 

should encourage everyone to prepare for the impacts of a 2°C rise in global 

temperatures, whilst also understanding the potential impacts of a 4°C rise too, to 

protect us from the uncertainties that remain around the total level of warming and 

severity of the impacts we might face.  

Local leaders from all sectors need to be seen to take the impacts of climate change 

seriously and involve themselves in planning for the future. Local councils and wider 

partners have an important role to ensure that their strategic plans take into account of 

the risks. We need to ensure that we plan for appropriate flood defences, use local 

water resources more efficiently, restrict development in vulnerable areas and adapt 

farming practices as well as our homes, other buildings and the places where we live to 

reduce the impacts on us all. By doing so now we can build resilience within our 

communities and be better able to respond to these challenges ahead of time.  

It is also important to recognise that we will each face different and varied impacts, 

based on our individual circumstances. Some homes and villages will have a higher risk 

of flooding and those with existing health conditions, as well as our youngest and oldest 

residents, will be more vulnerable to ill health due to overheating. We should seek to 

ensure that everyone is supported fairly, so that adapting to climate change does not 

unfairly impact or burden anyone, particularly those least able to do without support.  

Page 51



 
9 

Key Actions: Adapting to climate change  

We can be better prepared for the impacts of climate change if we; 

• Encourage everyone to prepare for the impacts of a 2°C rise in global 

temperatures, while assessing the potential impacts of a 4°C rise; 

o Encourage business continuity planning for local farmers, businesses and 

organisations, to considers the likely impacts of climate change on their 

operations and services and how they may need to adapt. 

o Ensure local communities are aware of the impacts of climate change, 

how it may impact them and how they can be more resilient. 

• Improve joint working and knowledge sharing to better understand local risks. 

• Ensure that we have the right local emergency plans in place, which prioritise 

vulnerable people and places. 

• Ensure local flood assessments are regularly reviewed and updated, so we 

understand current and future risks of flooding and have suitable management 

plans in place. 

• Ensure local organisations that undertake local assessments and plan for the 

future, particularly those for key services and local infrastructure take into 

account future climate risks. 

• Work with our local water companies (Severn Trent and Anglian Water) to reduce 

water leaks, promote more efficient use of water and ensure we have the right 

infrastructure to meet our future water needs. 

• Ensure existing buildings, infrastructure and new development is resilient, to 

minimise and mitigate storm, flood and overheating risks as well as use water 

efficiently.  

• Seek funding to undertake a comprehensive local area energy assessment, to 

investigate the potential for all types of renewable energy and help us to better 

understand future energy demands, to ensure our energy supply is able to keep 

up with demand and not a barrier to moving to low carbon energy. 

  

Page 52



 
10 

Reducing local area greenhouse gas emission 

Reducing greenhouse gas emissions is key to limiting us from the worst impacts of 

climate change. Nationally we have already reduced emissions by around 50% since 

1990, but we have a duty to future generations to do more, do to our part locally to work 

towards the UK’s national and legally binding carbon reduction targets including 

reaching ‘net zero’ emissions by no later than 2050.  

 

The Government produces annual estimates for local area greenhouse gas emissions, 

including those created in Melton borough. This helps us to understand of where local 

emissions are being created and where actions to reduce these emissions will have the 

biggest impacts.  

2021 Melton borough area based greenhouse gas emission estimates in KtCo2e1

 

440 KtCO2e is the estimated amount we need to reduce 

greenhouse gas emissions created within Melton borough 

each year to reach net zero.  

 

1 All figures are quoted in carbon dioxide equivalent (CO2e) which relate to all greenhouse 

gas emissions, those from carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, 

perfluorocarbons and sulphur hexafluoride. Kt or Kilotons is equal to 1,000 tons. This 

document refers to ‘emissions’ as shorthand for all greenhouse gas emissions. 

Homes, buildings and 
the built environment 

187 KtCO2e                        
42%

Transport          
106 KtCO2e    

24%

Agriculture     
132 KtCO2e        

30%

L
a

n
d

 u
s

e
  
-7

 K
tC

O
2

e
 

W
a

s
te

  
2

6
 K

tC
O

2
e

 6
%

440  
KtCO2e 

Page 53



 
11 

Summary of where local emissions come from 

The most important and main source of local emissions is 

carbon dioxide (CO2). Overall it accounts for around two thirds 

of emissions created in the borough. CO2 is mainly created 

when we burn fossil fuels for energy that is used to power 

homes, buildings, industrial processes and vehicles that travel 

on local roads in the Melton borough.  

These emissions are the ones that we have the greatest level of 

local influence to reduce as they largely depend on decisions 

and choices made locally. 

  

Most of the remaining third of emission come from agriculture, 

mainly from methane produced by livestock (66%) and from 

nitrous oxide released from the use of fertilisers on soils (21%). 

Agricultural emissions are hard for us to directly influence 

locally, as they are strongly influenced by global and national 

economic factors, national regulations, Government policy and 

wider consumer demand.  

Our rich green natural environment means that overall land 

across the borough acts as a small carbon sink. It currently 

absorbs around 2% of total area emissions, mainly in 

woodlands and grasslands, where carbon is locked up in soils, 

vegetation and trees. There is potential to increase carbon 

storage, how we manage our farmland, gardens, streets, nature 

sites and other green spaces will influence the how well we can 

do so.  

Around 6% of local area emissions come from our waste. The 

vast majority of local waste emissions comes from methane 

which is released from landfill site storage of our waste. We can 

tackle most of these emission if we stop sending waste to 

landfill. We have a degree of local influence over these 

emissions, however what we throw away is influenced by the 

decisions of both manufacturers and consumers.  

More information, including a more detailed breakdown of where local area 

greenhouse emissions come from can found on the Council’s website;                                 

Climate Change Webpages 

Homes, buildings 

and the build 

environment 

Agriculture 

 

Transport 

Waste 

Land use 

Page 54

https://www.melton.gov.uk/environmental-issues/climate-change


 
12 

Transport and Travel  

Local transport emissions come from the way that people travel and how goods         

are transported within and through the borough. Transport emissions typically make up 

just over a quarter of all locally created emissions. The vast majority come from the use 

of petrol and diesel vehicles on local roads. Diesel trains that run on local railway tracks 

also contribute a small amount. These local area emissions do not include travel local 

people do outside the borough, including to commute for work or to go on holiday. 

Individuals and businesses should also consider them if they want to reduce emissions.  

Local people recognise the impact their cars have and have told us that they want to 

use them less, but they feel dependant on them, particularly if the live or work in rural 

areas. They do not feel like they have a real choice other than to own and regularly use 

a car, due to the distance they need to travel to access work and local services and 

because there are limited options to use public transport. Even people in Melton 

Mowbray and our most well connected and largest villages feel a need to own a car to 

access hospital health services, to visit family and friends and access evening 

entertainment and wider retail services which are only available outside the borough. 

Local people have also told us that they cannot walk and cycle as much as they would 

like to because of a lack of safe and attractive footpaths and cycle paths, especially into 

and around Melton Mowbray town centre.  

Reducing emissions from transport is a tough challenge locally because we are starting 

from a point where we are highly car dependent and our population is spread out across 

a large rural area, which makes doing things like introducing new bus services and 

cycling infrastructure harder and more expensive. We need to acknowledge that for a 

rural area like us zero emissions vehicles will likely be an important part of the future. 

Electric vehicles are currently the quickest and most practical alternative for most road 

users, although alternative fuels such as green hydrogen may prove useful for some, 

particularly for high energy commercial uses. Electric cars are not a perfect solution; 

due to their costs, space required to charge them and the environmental impacts 

associated with their production. They also like standard cars produce polluting fine 

particulates from tire friction which can impact air quality and health.  

Our immediate goal then should be to make households feel less car dependent, to use 

cars for less journeys and reduce the need for households to own as many cars. This 

can take many forms from improving rural broadband, so more people can work from 

home, to providing more attractive and safer cycling and walking routes to local schools. 

We know that people tend to use the easiest and most attractive form of transport, so 

we should take action to try to make cycling, walking, local buses, car sharing and other 

alternatives more attractive and convenient than using the car. The key is to make 

alternatives convenient, safe, attractive, affordable and inclusive.  

Page 55



 
13 

Highlighting the wider benefits  

• Positive impacts on local people’s health and well-being, by increasing 

opportunities for physical activity and improving local air quality. 

• Reduce local traffic congestion and noise as well as limiting the need to further 

expand and upgrade local road networks. 

• Reduce economic disadvantages faced by those who cannot afford to own a 

vehicle, including for young people, enabling everyone easier access to 

education, work and other services and facilities.  

How can we do this? 

Reducing local transport emissions locally is a big and long term challenge. There is a 

role for building local knowledge, supporting community action and encouraging people 

to change how they get about, but it is hard for local people and businesses to make 

different transport choices without wider changes. Many will need better infrastructure in 

place to have confidence to change how they currently get around, from better rural 

broadband connectivity to introducing safer walking and cycling routes and delivering 

affordable public electric vehicle chargepoints where needed.   

This is largely the role for local organisations, in particular Leicestershire County 

Council, who are the Local Highway Authority, and are responsible for all adopted roads 

and footways within Melton borough and for the management, maintenance and 

improvement of Leicestershire’s wider highway network. The key will be for them to 

listen to local people and work together with them to develop new approaches for 

transport that work well locally. We all need to work with the County Council to ensure 

their strategic transport guides, plans and strategies help to deliver the local 

infrastructure needed and ensure that they set out carbon reductions ambitions in line 

with reaching net zero as soon as possible.  

Other local strategic plans for health, the economy and planning (including the Melton 

local plan) can also make an important contribution to improving local transport 

sustainability, including within new developments.  

Page 56



 
14 

Key Actions: Transport and Travel 

• Improve rural high speed broadband access and online services, so  

more people can choose to work from home and meet their needs online. 

• Maintain and where possible improve local services and amenities, particularly 

for health services, entertainment and retail, to reduce the need to travel. 

• Take advantage of opportunities created by the Melton Mowbray distributer road 

(MMDR) to make travel across Melton Mowbray and surrounding villages safer 

and more attractive for walking and cycling. 

• Support Leicestershire County Council to develop a Walking and Cycling 

Infrastructure Plan for Melton Mowbray and encourage rural communities to take 

up their offer to create one with them, where appropriate.  

• Support and work with rural communities to explore new cost effective ways to 

access community transport options, including responsive on demand transport 

schemes, community car clubs and car share schemes. 

• Work with Leicestershire County Council and wider partners to develop a local 

EV infrastructure plan to ensure there are sufficient electric vehicle charging 

facilities, of the right kind and in the right places, at key destinations and for 

people who cannot easily charge electric vehicles at home. 

• Use local planning powers effectively, to ensure new development promotes low 

carbon travel and is designed for people not cars; where it is easy, safe and 

convenient to walk or cycle, including for journeys to local schools and shops.  

• Encourage businesses, including local taxi and transport companies, to transition 

their fleets to zero emission vehicles and encourage all local organisations and 

businesses to consider how they can support low carbon staff and visitor travel. 

• Support opportunities to promote ‘last mile’ distribution solutions, collection points 

to collect online deliveries on foot or by cycle, that can cut down local online 

delivery van journeys.  

• Ensure the local transport network is resilient to future impacts of climate change, 

including damage from flooding, storms and overheating. 

• Lobby for full electrification across the local and wider regional rail network.  

• Develop and promote programmes that support healthy and active lifestyles and 

make people aware of travel options they have, so they can make an informed 

choices in how they get about. This should include projects that improve cycle 

confidence and increase access to cycles as well as user friendly information to 

help people plan their journeys and explore the local area.  

Page 57



 
15 

Homes, Buildings and the Built Environment 

The local population is growing and there is a need to build more homes.                             

New homes and buildings need to use much less energy and water and be                     

powered by low carbon energy if they are to align with net zero targets. Our biggest 

challenge however are our existing buildings, in particular the borough’s housing stock 

of around 23,000 homes, which need to be retrofitted along the same principles.  

We estimate that in order to meet net zero targets around two out of three existing 

homes need to have works done to improve their energy efficiency and more than nine 

in ten homes need to move to a low carbon compatible heating system, mainly to 

replace natural gas and oil heating. This retrofitting challenge is made more complex 

because of the older age, condition and mix of homes and buildings we have. This 

includes many listed, historic and characterful buildings, which will require more varied 

and specialist retrofitting considerations, to ensure they preserve their valued local 

heritage and character. This is a huge financial and practical challenge which the non-

residential sector also faces, as there are many typologies of buildings, each with 

different challenges, in the industrial, commercial and public sectors too. To keep on 

track to meet net zero we will need to significantly increase both the speed and scale of 

retrofit in the borough, but this will be reliant on both sufficient skilled local workers and 

manufacturing supply chains.  

More widely, the places and streets where we live also need to be designed to be able 

to cope with the impacts of climate change, including increased flood risks as well as 

periods of drought and to protect us from overheating in summer. Local people told us 

that they want to the places where they live to be greener, to make them more 

enjoyable places for people and better for nature. They told us that they want climate 

change, sustainable lifestyles and enhancing the natural environment to be a key 

consideration for planning and new development and they want to see new 

development that delivers net zero new homes and buildings as soon as possible. 

There are however barriers to overcome to achieve this, particularly current limits to 

local planning powers.  

Local people also told us that they are keen to retrofit their homes but they do not know 

how they can afford to do so. They also told us that they need more trusted information 

and support to increase their confidence that they are doing the right things. They told 

us that they prefer actions and measures that they understand well and those which can 

help them save money, in particular improving home insulation and installing roof top 

solar panels. Householders were less confident and more cautious about undertaking 

actions such as changing their heating systems, many were concerned about the 

potential costs and disruption or unsure about whether new unfamiliar technologies, 

such as heat pumps, would work well for them.   

Page 58



 
16 

Highlighting the wider benefits  

• Reducing energy use will reduce energy costs, this is particularly important for 

households already struggling with their energy bills as well as public sector 

organisations, including schools, looking for ways to stretch their budgets and 

also to help businesses cut costs to remain competitive.   

• Improving water efficiency helps to ensure the longer term security of local water 

supplies and saves money on both water and energy bills, as much of the water 

we use, particularly at home is heated.  

• Improving all homes, so they are energy efficient will effectively eliminate fuel 

poverty, which was estimate to impact around 13% of local households in 2021.  

• Well insulated homes are warmer in winter and should not overheat in summer, 

they can help to reduce excess deaths and hospital admissions due to both cold 

winter weather and summer heatwaves. This can help to reduce pressure on 

local health and care services and save health and care services money too.  

• Nature based solutions to climate change in parks, streets, gardens and other 

open spaces can provide a better quality environment for both people and 

nature. 

How can we do this? 

We have already started, over one in ten local homes have had 

some type of energy efficiency works undertaken as part of a 

local or national energy efficiency scheme over the last decade, 

with many more undertaking works to buildings outside these 

funded schemes. Local councils have also come together to 

accelerate progress across Leicestershire and formed the 

Green Living Leicestershire partnership, which is working hard 

to bid for and secure more funding to improve more buildings.  

We need to continue this, with a focus on what we can do to accelerate and upscale 

local retrofitting action. What is needed is of course is much more funding but also buy 

in from local people to take part and improve their homes and business premises, and 

undertaking works to other local buildings, including local schools and parish halls.  

Retrofitting promotion, funding and schemes are most likely to be taken up if they align 

with what local people want. It suggests a focus on getting as many homes as possible 

up to a reasonable standard of energy efficiency to help to drive down energy costs. 

This will also help people be ready to change to low carbon heating systems, such as 

heat pumps, when they feel it is right for them to do so. Roof top solar panels are 

popular and projects that build such public demand, like the successful Leicestershire 

Page 59



 
17 

Solar Together scheme, should be supported. Local organisations need to work 

together to maximise funding and engagement opportunities. A focus now on 

partnership working and awareness raising will allow us to build supply chains and 

confidence, to enable higher levels of retrofit in future years.  

Access to funding, whether this is in the form of grants or the ability to borrow, will be 

key. What local people told us is that there is a need for a greater range of funding and 

for more types of buildings and wider groups of people. Although there will continue to 

be a need for targeted support for those who face the biggest personal challenges, 

including our most vulnerable and fuel poor households.  

It is not just about funding, successfully retrofitting local homes and buildings is 

dependent on a skilled local retrofit workforce supported by good quality supply chains 

and manufacturing base, which strongly links to local economy section of this strategy 

(see page 22). 

28% of local households rent their home, they and many local businesses will depend 

on their landlords to make changes to their buildings. All local residential and 

commercial landlords, which includes Melton Borough Council and local housing 

associations (who own 11% of all local homes), will need to develop a long term 

programme of works to retrofit their buildings. Landlords should also be encouraged to 

consider their wider role to support and encourage their tenants to use any new 

technologies they install effectively and how they can more widely help their tenants to 

reduce emissions associated with the use of their buildings.  

We will build thousands of new homes and many other buildings before 2050, we need 

to, to meet the needs of our growing population. The review of the Melton Local Plan is 

one way to influence local development standards, it provides local people an 

opportunity to help shape local planning policies around tackling climate change 

including standards in new homes and buildings. However there are constraints from 

the national planning system and housing market that need to be overcome to realise 

the types of development that local people want to see. We need to work with the local 

development industry to help them introduce new low carbon technologies and higher 

building standards, including the Government’s Future Homes and Future Buildings 

Standards. These new buildings standards are expected to end the use of gas boilers 

for heating and make new homes much more energy efficient and able to operate with 

net zero emissions. The Government can also do more by providing a clearer long term 

policy pathway around raising new and existing building standards, that can increase 

confidence in investment decisions, including those of landlords and developers.  

Page 60



 
18 

Key Actions: Homes and the Built Environment 

• Aim for as many existing homes and buildings, as is practically possible,                  

to reach a decent standard of thermal efficiency (an EPC rating of A-C) by 2035. 

• Build public confidence in new technologies, in particular heat pump systems. 

• Work with our local water companies to help them implement their local water 

management plan ambitions to improve water efficiency. 

• Alongside improving energy efficiency promote consideration for additional works 

so homes are not at risk of overheating in summer, for our wellbeing and to 

minimise future additional energy demand for fans and air-conditioning. 

• Help all households, across all tenures, understand what measures are required 

in their homes and how they can practically undertake them, particularly for 

works to heritage buildings and within conservation areas.   

• Target current limited funding and support to the worst performing homes, for the 

most vulnerable, the fuel poor and other low income households. Lobby 

Government for more powers and funding to improve buildings and places faster. 

Lobby government for long term funding and regulatory certainty required to drive 

business and landlord investments that can help accelerate action.  

• Use local planning powers effectively to ensure low carbon new development, 

that supports nature, active lifestyles and makes effective use of land, including 

previously-developed ‘brownfield’ land. Ensure all new buildings are at a 

minimum able to operate with net zero emissions from no later than 2025.  

• Use nature based green and blue infrastructure solutions to offset the emissions 

from built up areas and help places be more resilient to climate change; to cool 

built up areas in summer, manage water resources better, reduce flood risks, 

store carbon and help nature.  

• Encourage all landlords, of both housing and commercial assets, to develop and 

implement plans to retrofit their assets and encourage their tenants to reduce 

emissions associated with their use of their buildings.  

• Support the construction and development industry to adopt low carbon new 

development standards, sustainable construction methods and expand capacity 

within the retrofit sector.  

• Encourage local businesses, organisations and households to share their 

projects and experiences with one another, to inspire one another and learn 

about how to practically undertake projects.  

Page 61



 
19 

Natural Environment and Farming    

Melton borough has a rich natural environment which is valued by residents                      

and visitors alike for its pleasant and tranquil setting and accessible countryside. With 

its gentle rolling landscape, pastureland and extensive networks of hedgerows and 

country lanes, our rural borough, as you might expect, benefits from many local nature 

sites that create a vital network reaching across the borough and beyond. It is a key part 

of what makes Melton borough a great place and it is highly valued by local people, who 

want to tackle climate change alongside protecting and enhancing the natural 

environment. They understand that tackling climate change and restoring nature are co-

dependent, that it is impossible to address one without addressing the other. 

Agriculture and food production is a key part of our local economy and is vital to feed us 

all. Agriculture is the single largest source of local greenhouse emissions but also the 

sector which is most likely to be impacted by climate change. Farmers are in the 

frontline of climate change and will likely have to adapt more than most of us. A lack of 

water, higher temperatures and more unpredictable and extreme weather events are 

key risks to both local crop yields and livestock welfare. Local agricultural emissions are 

also the most challenging for us to directly address, they are considered hard to 

influence at a local level, because the sector is highly dependent on global economic 

pressures, national regulations, Government policies and wider consumer demand.  

The National Farmers Union estimate that agricultural emissions could be reduced by 

around a quarter by adjusting farming practices, and that many changes are likely to be 

win-win solutions, that can help increase farming productivity and efficiency. To do this 

however new technologies and skills are needed in our rural economy and the training, 

skills and investment required to introduce them can be a barrier for individual farmers.  

Farming is also uniquely placed to be part of the solution, farmland already has an 

important role in storing carbon and our farmers already manage carbon stored in local 

hedgerows, trees, woodlands, grasslands and soils. Farmers are becoming more 

knowledgeable about their ability to store carbon and could do more if they get the right 

support, which takes into account management and maintenance costs.  

We all need to eat and in the context of a growing global population we need to 

increase not reduce food production. This strategy supports farmers and their work to 

produce food more sustainably, rather than solutions to climate change that take our 

most productive local farmland out of use, unless there are exceptional reasons to do 

so, for example if it is critical for local nature recovery. It would simply shift emissions 

from our food elsewhere, and if overseas, then this is likely to somewhere where food is 

not produced to as high a standard or as sustainably. Instead we should encourage 

local people to be aware of the climate impacts of their diets, so they can make 

informed choices on what to eat.  

Page 62



 
20 

Highlighting the wider benefits  

• Help to stop ecological decline and supporting local nature recovery.  

• Improving the local natural environment makes the borough more enjoyable for 

all, it has also been shown to be beneficial to our mental health and wellbeing. 

• New farming practices can increase productivity and help reduced farming costs. 

Nature based climate change solutions can also benefit farmers. Silvo-pasture 

(blending trees into pasture land) can provide cost effective cooling shade for 

cattle in summer and setting aside small pieces of land for pollinating insects can 

help to reduce their decline and benefit crop pollination.  

• A planet friendly diet is typically also good for people; if done well, can be both 

lower cost and better for our health. 

How can we do this? 

Central to our challenge as a rural farming area is the efficient and sensitive use of land 

for all our needs, maintaining local food production, preserving and enhancing nature, 

generating energy and storing carbon.  

We need to support local farmers and champion the work they are doing to support 

nature and produce food more sustainably. We need to listen to the farming community 

to understand how we can help them boost productivity, reduce their emissions and 

water use and increase carbon storage on their farmland. At a local level we can ensure 

that the right policies, systems and infrastructure are in place to enable them to make 

changes. For example, high speed rural broadband will enable farmers to take full 

advantage of new data driven smart technologies and a reliable and affordable low 

carbon energy supply is essential to support the electrification of farming operations. 

There is lots of potential across the borough for nature based solutions to help tackle 

climate change whilst also protecting and enhancing nature. Many local residents, 

businesses, organisations, parish councils, community groups and local farmers have 

told us that are already taking steps to help nature or want to do more. To be 

successful, we need to ensure a joint approach between the many organisations 

working to support nature in the borough, including, nature conservation organisations, 

local wildlife charities, farmers, land managers and local people.  

Key to doing this well is developing local evidence and sharing knowledge so we can all 

ensure that we are using our limited resources to do the right things in the right places 

to best support nature recovery alongside tackling climate change. The planned local 

Nature Recovery Strategy for Leicestershire is great opportunity to ensure we do this 

well. Other local plans and strategies, including the Melton Local Plan, should also seek 

to promote nature based solutions to climate change that help to protect and enhance 

nature.  

Page 63



 
21 

Key Actions: Natural Environment and Farming    

• Support Leicestershire County Council to develop and adopt a Local Nature 

Recovery Strategy and action plan, based on robust local evidence, that prioritise 

the geographic areas, habitats and most urgent actions required to protect, 

restore and enhance local nature.  

• Explore opportunities to work with the local community to develop a plan to  

‘green’ Melton Mowbray town centre; to reduce emissions, be more climate 

resilient and explore a community suggestion to become a ‘bee friendly’ town. 

• Encourage all landowners to adopt more nature and climate friendly land 

management practices. Including actions that can be done at small scales, in 

local parks and green spaces, in streets, gardens and around workplaces.  

• Promote natural water management measures that can benefit nature and 

improve climate resilience by reducing flood and summer drought risks. 

• Ensure new development works well with the natural environment in which it sits 

and that it delivers biodiversity net gains. Ensure local planning approaches also 

work well to support farm building modernisation and retrofitting which can help 

farmers reduce their environmental impacts. 

• Support conditions to enable farming to innovate and take advantage of new 

technologies, by supporting high speed rural broadband, rural mobile network 

connectivity and reliable and affordable low carbon energy.  

• Encourage partnership work across local food, drink and farming sector, to share 

knowledge, expertise and experiences in tackling climate change with one 

another and with local policy and decision makers, so they can better understand 

the evolving needs of the sector.  

• Raise awareness of healthy food choices and how these can also be good for the 

environment alongside the benefits of supporting sustainable, local food growing 

and buying, so local people can make informed decisions about what to eat.  

• Ensure we have sufficient local allotments to meet current and future demand.  

• Lobby Government for more ambitious plans backed by sufficient funding, to 

secure the long term production of high-quality sustainable local food, to build 

resilience and confidence in the farming sector and encourage future investment.  

• Work in partnership with existing local education and training providers, including 

Brooksby Melton College, to ensure training and educational opportunities that 

support climate friendly farming and land management.  

Page 64



 
22 

 A Greener Low Carbon Economy  

Many of our needs are satisfied through the local economy, so the climate                           

impacts and wider sustainability of local businesses and their products and services is 

important. Climate change considerations for local businesses go beyond local area 

emissions, those directly from their buildings and operations. We have a global economy 

and local businesses rarely work in isolation, for them climate change requires wider 

consideration around their products and services, which may be reliant on global supply 

chains alongside meeting the needs of a wide variety of customers. They will need to work 

with their clients, customers and supply partners, to successfully implement change.  

Companies also need to understand the climate risks they might face, to help safeguard 

their business and identify opportunities to compete in a future greener low carbon 

economy. As the ‘rural capital of food’ there may be specific local opportunities for our food 

economy, producers, events and markets to take advantage of increasing consumer 

demand for more sustainable, high standard and locally sourced foods.   

Many local businesses have told us that they want to become greener, less wasteful and 

more sustainable, many have already taken steps to do so. Their top interests are actions 

around reducing energy use, packaging (including single use plastic), and influencing their 

supply chains; actions that can help businesses save money seem the most likely to be of 

interest. Many said that they costs were not a direct barrier, that they could potentially 

make investments to operate more sustainably, the key barrier was around concerns that 

the costs associated doing so would have to be passed onto customers, and uncertainty 

about how this may impact their competitiveness, affordability and consumer demand.  

Being more sustainable requires greater consideration of how we all use resources, in line 

with circular economic ideas (see page 25), to reduce, reuse and continually recycle 

materials across supply chains rather than dispose of them as waste. This may provide 

new income generation and economic opportunities for local businesses, but there is a 

need for innovation and investment to support such actions. Local businesses have 

expressed disappointment that they have not seen much support at a national or local level 

to help them so far.  

If we want a prosperous future economy we need to be a strong position to take advantage 

of future green jobs. ‘Green jobs’ are any jobs that have a direct, positive impact on the 

planet and that are expected to form part of the low carbon economy of the future. They 

includes roles in renewable energy, manufacturing low carbon technologies as well as jobs 

in environmental management and retrofitting buildings. They have the potential to provide 

new types of long term employment to hundreds of local people in the borough, estimates 

suggest a need for over 400 new green jobs in Melton borough by 2030, rising to more 

than 600 by 2050. We also need to encourage employers to think about how every job can 

become a green job, how every business and worker needs a good understanding of 

Page 65



 
23 

climate change, the impact their work has and what they can do to help their organisation 

to reduce it.  

Highlighting the wider benefits  

• The efficient use of energy and resources can help to reduce business costs and 

increase productivity. 

• New economic opportunities and ‘green jobs’ which can help to build wealth and 

prosperity within our local communities alongside increasing local capacity to 

accelerate climate action. 

• Planning for climate change can help businesses to plan more effectively, and 

develop better investment and business continuity plans. 

• Health and wellbeing benefits from wider climate action can have positive impacts 

on the economy, such as fewer illness-related days lost at work which can also help 

to improve productivity. 

• Businesses that care about the environment and demonstrate a real commitment to 

tackling climate change have been shown to be more attractive employers, better 

able to retain their workforces and increase consumer loyalty.  

How can we do this? 

The changes required to move to a low carbon economy will look different for every 

business, for some the support might best come from their own sectors rather than the 

local area or community. Some might need local area based support, and this is where 

there is most likely to be a role for local public sector organisations, including the local 

economic partnership and local councils who develop local economic and other strategic 

plans. The Government as well as local public sector organisations can also help by 

providing clear and consistent policies and direction, to help increase confidence and 

enable local businesses to make long term investment decisions that ultimately will help us 

to all tackle climate change faster. Longer term funding guarantees for retrofitting homes in 

particular will help to drive confidence and local investment where it is most needed and 

support growth in local green jobs.  

Businesses will also need people with the right experience, skills and qualifications which 

are ready for the future to implement changes they need, particularly for jobs associated 

with the retrofitting of buildings. If we want the local economy to thrive over the long term 

then local businesses need to be prepared for climate change and understand the potential 

impacts climate change may have on their operations, both directly and indirectly, including 

to their supply chains, due to changing consumer demands or keep up with new 

environmental and emission regulatory requirements.  

Page 66



 
24 

 Key Actions: Greener Low Carbon Economy  

• Encourage local businesses to incorporate climate change into their                   

business plans, to consider how climate change may impact them. 

• Encourage businesses to consider their own leadership role and how they can 

engage with and encourage their staff and customers to make changes as well.  

• Ensure local economic strategies and plans provide a clear commitment to net 

zero and a more sustainable local economy that values nature. They should 

support local businesses to adapt to a low carbon and more circular economy 

and help connect businesses to the training, funding and support they need to do 

so. 

• Encourage local education and skill providers to embed learning about climate 

change into local skills, training and adult education programmes and support 

local apprenticeships, particularly for developing retrofitting and environmental 

management skills.  

• Encourage local business partnerships and networks to help local business 

demonstrate their commitment to more sustainable business practices and share 

knowledge, experiences and learning with one another.  

• Ask local businesses to invest in local climate change and environmental projects 

within Melton borough as part of their social value programmes, community 

investment strategies or to mitigate their local environmental impacts (over the 

short term, until their operations become more sustainable).  

• Work with the sustainable food partnership and other partners to take build 

economic opportunities within the local food sector that can help to build demand 

for more sustainable, high standard and locally sourced food.  

• Encourage all local businesses and organisations to adopt procurement 

processes that support sustainable procurement, including local farming and food 

production within their catering decisions.  

• Seek to increase demand for sustainable products and services, showcase and 

champion local businesses who are taking action and raise awareness amongst 

consumers, so they can make informed decisions about what they buy.  

Page 67



 
25 

Waste and the use of resources  

Emission from waste account for around 6% of local area emissions, this                                   

is largely from methane emitted from bio-degradable waste placed in landfill (80%) and 

the emissions that arise from the treatment of our waste water. The most effective way 

to reduce our waste emissions is to avoid creating waste. This will reduce the need for 

waste to go to landfill and if we can use water more efficiently, there is less to treat and 

dispose of. But it is more than just considering the emissions that arise from processing 

waste, it is about recognising and valuing the energy and resources that go into 

producing goods, services and food.  

The waste hierarchy (left) provides a simple 

framework to reduce waste that the whole 

community can use. It aims to reduce and 

recycle waste as much as possible, while 

dealing with residual waste in the most 

sustainable way.  It encourages us to 

consider how we can shift from meeting our 

needs through our current linear ‘take, make, 

consume, throw away’ approach to something 

more sustainable, like a circular economy 

approach.  

 

A circular economy approach is one where 

resources are used as efficiently as possible, 

again and again, for as long as possible. 

Where products are designed to last as long 

as possible, to be easy to repair and made 

out of materials that can be recycled 

repeatedly. This approach also support 

sharing, leasing, reusing, repairing and 

refurbishing rather than us all buying new 

things that we will not use many times. 

Local people told us that they care deeply about rubbish; their own waste, fly-tipping 

and litter, particularly when it impacts the natural environment. They want more support 

to reduce their own waste and ensure their waste is recycled and disposed of correctly. 

Local people are also concerned about single use plastic packaging and plastic 

pollution. Many recognise how we as a society consume things is not sustainable and 

that we need to change how much and what we buy, but sometimes costs are a barrier 

to make the most sustainable choices. 

Page 68



 
26 

Highlighting the wider benefits  

• Reducing how much we need to buy and how often as well as buying more efficient 

appliances can over the lifetime of products normally save local people and 

businesses money  

• Nature benefits, from less litter and waste to a reduced need to extract resources 

from the natural environment 

How can we do this? 

Melton Borough Council has a direct role as it is responsible for the collection of local 

household waste, as do Leicestershire County Council, who are responsible for local 

waste disposal. They are both members of the local Waste Management Partnership 

and they need to continue to work together, with others across the county, to encourage 

the most environmentally sustainable options for the future processing and treatment of 

our waste. The local Waste Management Partnership has developed its own strategy, 

The Leicestershire Waste and Leicestershire Resources and Waste Strategy and Action 

Plan, to reduce waste and better use resources, promoting the use of the waste 

hierarchy and circular economy principals set out above. So there is already in place a 

partnership taking responsibility for the key actions we need to do. 

Wider local strategies and plans can do their part to, the Melton Local Plan can help 

ensure new development minimises waste and uses resources efficiently and Severn 

Trent and Anglian Water both have Water Management Plans and action plans to 

support us all to use water more efficiently.  

The local community has also already taken a lead, from the Melton Wombles working 

hard to tackle local litter to Melton Space who run regular local repair cafes. Part of the 

solutions is to encourage more community awareness and projects and expand them 

across the whole borough. 

The Government needs to do its part too, it needs to follow through with more promised 

regulations and funding, especially to further reduce single use plastics and provide the 

funding promised to enable local council’s to start to collect food waste.  

  

Page 69



 
27 

Key Actions: Waste and the use of resources  

• Raise awareness and increase participation in initiatives, services,                              

activities and campaigns that support and encourage water efficiency and waste 

prevention. 

• Support and encourage people to grow, cook, buy and eat good, local and 

seasonal food and minimising food waste. 

• Seek to reduce fly-tipping and litter by educating residents and businesses about 

their legal duty of care to dispose of their rubbish responsibly and support 

enforcement where appropriate. 

• Aim to increase local household recycling rates from 45% to 65% and explore the 

viability of adding extra materials, including food waste, to local recycling 

collections.  

• Raise awareness and opportunities for people to reuse, repair and recycle more. 

Support local repair and reuse community projects. Explore opportunities to 

expand reuse services and improve the collection of items that could be reused 

or recycled.  

• Remove recoverable food waste from waste stream, by encouraging home 

composting and implementing separate household food waste collections where 

appropriate. 

• Reduce carbon emissions from waste management services by developing lower 

carbon solutions for waste collection and disposal. 

• Support the economic opportunities to develop local supply chains and markets, 

to increase reuse and recycling of waste and secondary raw materials. 

• Support the Leicestershire County Council in its aim to reduce waste sent to 

landfill, and its target to send less than 5% of the waste the County processes to 

landfill by 2025. 

• Support local water companies water management plans to conserve water and 

encourage them to go beyond current targets to reduce water leaks by at least 

50% by 2050.  

• Minimise waste and support the efficient use of resources in new development. 

• Explore the possibility of a grant or loan scheme, that can help those with low 

incomes afford to access more efficient and longer lasting appliances and 

products, where the initial cost to purchase is recouped through reduced running 

costs and longer lifetime of the product.   

Page 70



 
28 

Delivering the strategy  

It is expected that this strategy will evolve over time, through engagement with                

local people, as new opportunities are discovered, as new initiatives come forward, and 

as our knowledge, understanding and technology advances. So this strategy should be 

considered a foundation for local action and should not stand in the way of pursuing 

new opportunities which may arise. This required us to adopt flexible, pragmatic and 

dynamic approaches particularly so we can maximise investment for any new funding 

opportunities. 

How Melton Borough Council will use this strategy 

The Council is committed to do its part. The Council’s ambition is to become a net zero 

organisation and to lead by example in promoting sustainable practices across its 

operations and wider estate, including its housing stock. In addition to this the Council is 

committed to use its local powers and leadership role to help the Melton borough to 

reduce emissions and become a more sustainable place. To help achieve this it will 

ensure this strategy becomes a key consideration in the Council’s decision making 

processes and in how it delivers its services.  

The Council will develop two action plans to help to deliver this strategy. One will set out 

the actions required to reduce the Council’s own operational emissions and ensure its 

services are resilient to the impacts of climate change, in line with the Climate 

Emergency pledge it made in 2019. It will drive change in areas such as energy use, 

procurement, waste collection service and the management of its assets, including the 

Council’s housing stock. 

A second action plan will focus on using the Council’s powers and its local leadership 

role to help deliver the actions set out in this strategy across the whole borough. This is 

viewed as a key part of the Council’s wider role to protect and improve the lives and 

livelihoods of its residents, communities and businesses. The Council’s role in the 

boroughwide action plan will not be to control or lead on all actions, projects and issues, 

rather it will set out how the Council can use its powers and limited resources effectively 

to empower and support everyone to take action themselves. The boroughwide action 

plan will also reflect what local people have said that they want the Council to do, to 

focus on prioritising its efforts to where it has the greatest power and influence.  

The Council will also ensure that it embeds this strategy into the strategic plans it leads 

on including the Melton Local Plan, its Housing Strategy and Corporate Strategy and it 

will encourage others to do the same.  

 

Page 71



 
29 

Collaborating and working together  

A key theme throughout this strategy is that no one has the resources and powers to 

reduce local area greenhouse gas emissions as quickly as needed or successfully manage 

the impacts of climate change alone. Our individual actions can however collectively have 

a big impact and will likely be how we can successfully tackle climate change locally.  

Many local people, businesses, organisations and wider partners have stated that climate 

change is a key priority to them. There is clear commitment by many to work together to 

tackle climate change across the borough, county and region. What we now need to do is 

start to work better together, to collaborate and develop working partnerships, networks 

and agreements, at all scales and across different sectors. We have already started to do 

so, the Green Living Leicestershire partnership and the development of the Leicestershire 

Climate and Nature Pact being just two examples of developing new ways to work together 

locally to tackle climate change and support nature. This approach can help us to; 

• Build community awareness. 

• Better identify local problems and local solutions. 

• Maximise funding and investment opportunities. 

• Enables us to learn from each other’s experiences and share expertise and 

resources. 

• Ensuring a more holistic joined up consideration of actions, to boost wider benefits 

and reduce duplication. 

Public organisations, including both local councils, also have a wider local leadership 

role, with indirect collective influence on around an estimated third of all local emissions, 

through their various planning, licencing, housing, waste management and transport 

powers. It is important for them and wider partners to demonstrate leadership and 

embed carbon reduction and climate resilience into their policies and services, to help 

make it easier for the community to take action themselves. This will require 

commitment from a range of local organisations to change their working practices, 

behaviours, policies and investment decisions. 

We must acknowledge that we are somewhat dependent upon national and global 

political, organisational and societal changes; we cannot reach net zero emissions 

locally without the decarbonisation of the National Grid, without clear national policies 

and regulations, nor without sufficient funding to support local projects and initiatives. By 

working together we can amplify our individual voices to help each other secure the 

wider help and change that we need.  

 

Page 72



 
30 

Encouraging community buy in  

Everyone will be impacted in some way by climate change and we all have a part to 

play to tackle it. So everyone should be able to contribute and deserves to have their 

views heard. The views of all members of the local community are important, this 

includes those of our young people and children. Local people are clear that it is 

important to hear from them, as they are the generation that will be most impacted by 

climate change. Local School leaders have also told us they would welcome expertise 

and support to help them become more sustainable.  

Encouraging people to act now for climate benefits, that may occur in the future can 

also be challenging, however the wider benefits are often experienced much quicker. To 

encourage community buy in we must communicate what individuals stand to gain 

personally. For example, better insulating our homes will help to cut emissions, but the 

conversation should focus on return on investment, lower energy bills and warmer 

homes, rather than abstract climate targets. Ensuring that such wider benefits are 

clearly understood and highlighted can help to increase engagement and participation. 

They provide a way to get more local people, businesses and organisations on board. 

They should be understood as a key motivator, as people are simply more likely to do 

something because it is good for their health or finances, rather than just for the planet. 

Focus on avoiding and reducing  

This strategy promotes climate action that follows the principal of avoiding and then 

reducing the use of energy, water and other resources. Where this cannot be done it 

promotes the use of the best and most sustainable options, be that lower carbon 

solutions or products that are easier to repair or recycle. This is in line with the Carbon 

Reduction Hierarchy, shown below, and the Waste Management Hierarchy and the 

principles of a circular economy, both discussed on page 25. 

The Carbon Reduction Hierarchy  

  

Page 73



 
31 

Go faster where possible 

We recognise that the science increasingly suggests that we should reach net zero as 

soon as possible and by no later than 2040 and we would like Melton borough to 

achieve this, but there is not a clear pathway at this point in time that makes this 

realistically achievable. This is due to a variety of factors including; 

• Insufficient funding, especially for lower income households 

• A need for the Government to clarify and strengthen national policy and 

regulatory approaches. 

• The specific local and rural challenges, particularly around decarbonising local 

transport, agriculture and the housing stock that this strategy sets out. 

• Local economic gaps in relation to the right skills within the local workforce and a 

need to increase supply chain and manufacturing capacities to accelerate action, 

particularly for retrofitting of local buildings. 

Addressing these challenges, so we are in as strong a position as possible to reach net 

zero faster is considered a key part of this strategy and Government asks have been 

highlighted within the key actions of the strategy’s five themes.  

We need further Government action to better align local capacity for change with local 

ambitions. Specifically we need to seek leadership from the Government and others; 

• To lay out clearly the funding mechanisms to finance the transition, fairly for all. 

• To clarify and strengthen national policy and regulatory approaches, to clearly set 

out how we as a nation will achieve net zero, and to be consistent to increase 

certainty, not least so we can all plan more confidently for the future. 

• To devolve more powers and funding directly to local people and organisations, 

so we can drive forward local change faster, without the time and expense of 

uncertain and competitive bidding funding processes. 

• To help improve communications and information sharing, so we can all better 

understand local challenges and assist with coming up with local solutions. 

• To fund rural research, such as pilot projects and projects to help test new 

technologies and ways of doing things, to help demonstrate what can work for 

rural places like Melton borough, which often have different challenges and 

opportunities to urban areas.  

  

Page 74



 
32 

Promoting a flexible evidence led approach  

We want to this strategy to be flexible and adaptive to accommodate new legislative and 

policy issues, technological advances and data-based evidence. This is why it is set out 

as a high level strategic document, rather than prescribing all the solutions, which are 

many and will vary for each of us. So it promotes actions to be delivered in many ways 

and by many different people. The Council’s action plans will set out the specific actions 

the Council will work towards and it will encourage others to develop their own action 

plans or otherwise make commitments to do their fair part. 

Data and behavioural insights, digital platforms and interactive mapping are increasingly 

be used to maximise impacts of interventions. They can help to develop business cases 

for making change, demonstrate wider benefits and ensure more confident investment 

and decision making. This strategy support local organisations sharing their knowledge 

and evidence, to work together to pool their resources so we are working collectively 

from accurate and robust information, that local people can have confidence in. As part 

of the Council’s boroughwide action plan we will examine how we can work better with 

other local organisations who also report local area greenhouse gas emissions, to see if 

we can develop better ways to report local area emissions and other data more 

accurately and more consistently.  

There is an identified need for more and better tools to help farmers, businesses, 

organisations and individuals better understand where they most need to make 

changes. Here there is a role for the Government and leadership across all sectors to 

help provide such tools and information in a way that is easy to use and understand.  

Monitoring, evaluation and reporting 

A climate change section on the Council’s website has been created where details 

of this strategy and the Council’s action plans will be shown, alongside key information 

for residents and businesses, to act as a useful local resource.  

This strategy will be reviewed after five years, to consider any opportunities to 

accelerate delivery, to ensure that the focus is still valid and that any new risks are 

taken into account. The Council will report annually on its activities and progress on its 

action plans. In addition individual council led projects will be subject to their own 

standard monitoring and evaluation processes.  

To ensure it fully and transparently considers the impacts of its decisions on climate 

change and nature, a decision-making tool will be developed and implemented by the 

Council for the decisions it makes. This will be applied to all key decisions taken by the 

Council. Other businesses and organisations will be encouraged to do the same. 

Page 75

https://www.melton.gov.uk/environmental-issues/climate-change


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	4 REVIEW OF THE FORWARD PLAN
	5 MID-YEAR REVIEW OF THE SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME
	6 CLIMATE CHANGE - DRAFT STRATEGY CONSULTATION
	Appendix A - Draft Climate Change Strategy


